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AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK GROUP

., Ref: FTRY/LET/2008/03/001

Date: 16 ,UN 2008

Mr. Paul DUDEK

Chief, Office of International Finance
United States Securities

And Exchange Commission

File Desk / Room 1004 e = m
450 Fifth Street, N.W. vz 209
Washington, D.C. 20549 mel 0
e B 9
Dear Sir, =

African Development Bank, File No. 83-4,
Regulation AFDB, Sections 288.2(a) and 288.4

In accordance with Sections 288.2 and 288.4 (a), (b) and (c) of Regulation AFDB
adopted pursuant to Section 9(a) of the African Development Bank Act, we
transmit herewith, for filing with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission, the periodic report of the African Development Bank for the quarter

ended 31 March 2008, which includes two copies of the African Development
Bank’s regular quarterly financial statements for such quarter.

Yours faithfully,

e

Pierre Van Peteghem
Treasurer
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'BANQUE AFRICAINE DE DEVELOPPEMENT Regulation AFDB
Section 288.2(a) and 288.4

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “COMMISSION”)
WASHINGTON D.C 20549
PERIODIC REPORT

Pursuant to Sections 288.2(a) and 288.4 (a), (b) and (c) of Regulation AFDB
adopted pursuant to Section 9(a) of the African Development Bank Act, the
African Development Bank hereby submits the information described below.

QUARTER ENDED 31 MARCH 2008 (the "Quarter”)
AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK (the "Bank")
TUNIS, TUNISIA

1. Information concerning any purchases or sales by the Bank of its primary
obligations during the Quarter:

The Bank borrowed the following amounts under its Global Debt Issuance

Facility:
DESCRIPTION TYPE OF TRADE VALUE MATURITY AMOUNT CALL DATE DEALER
TRANSACTION DATE DATE DATE IN CURRENCY '
CAD 300 Million Notes
due 18 June 2013 Borrowing 11-Jan-08 25-Jan-08 18-Jun-13 CAD 300,000,000 - RBC Capital Markets
JPY 300 Million PRDC Borrowing
Notes due February 07-Feb-08 27-Feb-08 01-Feb-23 JPY 300,000,000 1-Feb09 Shinkin Intemational
2023
JPY 300 Mittion PRDC 12-Feb-08 03-Mar-08 4-Mar-38 JPY 300,000,000 4-Mar09 Mizuho
Notes due February Bormowing
2038
JPY 500 Million PRDC 13Feb-08 27-Feb-08 1-Feb-18 JPY 500,000,000 1-Feb09 Shinkin intemational
Notes due February Borrowing
2018
USD 500 Million Globat Barrowing 15-Feb-08 25-Feb08 25-Feb-11 USD 500,000,000 - BNP Paribas / Morgan
Notes due February Stanley
2011
ZAR 500 Million 19-Feb-08 27-Feb-08 3-Mar-10 ZAR 500,000,000 - Daiwa SMBC Europe
Uridashi Notes due Borrowing
March 2010
NZD 200 Million Notes Borrowing
due 25 February 2013 21.Feb-08 28-Feb08 28-Feb-13 NZD 200,000,000 - ANZ 1 TD Securities
JPY 500 Million PRDC 6-Mar-08 25-Mar-08 1-Feb-18 JPY 500,000,000 - Shinkin Intemational
Notes due 1 Febneary Borrowing
2018
JPY 1.48 Billion Notes LSJBIC 26-Mav-08 28-Mar-08 20-Feb-47 JPY 1,481,480,000 -
Due 20 Feb 2047 JBIC




The Bank redeemed in full the following amounts in respect of its primary
obligations during the Quarter:

Description Trade Value Maturity Amount call Dealer
Date Date Date Redeemed Date

NGN 12.780 Million due
January 2008 16-Jan-2007 18-Jan-2007 18-Jan-2008 NGN 12,780,000,000 - Standard Bank

AUD 450 Million Uridashi
due February 2008 28-Jan-2003 27-Feb-2003 27-Feb-2008 AUD 450,000,000 - Daiwa SMBC Europe

JPY 10 Billion due March
2008 27-Feb-1998 12-Mar1998 12-Mar-2008 JPY 10,000,000,000 - JP Morgan

2. Two copies of any material modifications or amendments during the Quarter
of any exhibits (other than as described in the parenthetical in Section
288.2(a)(3) of Regulation AFDB) previously filed with the Commission under
any statute:

No material modifications or amendments of any exhibits previcusly
filed with the Commission under any statute were made during the
Quarter.

3. Attached hereto please find two copies of the Bank's regular quarterly
financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2008.

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 288.4(a) of
Regulation AFDB, this Report has been signed on behalf
of the African Development Bank by the undersigned
who is a duly authorized officer thereof.

Yours faithfully,

T

Pierre Van Peteghem
Treasurer
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Prepared by: FFCO
Originai: English/French
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|| ' Not applicable
MEMORANDUM

TO : THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM : Kordjé BEDOUMRA

Secretary General

SUBJECT : ADB FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED
MARCH 31, 2008 *

In accordance with the Bank’s Financial Regulations, I submit hereto, the Financial Statements of
the African Development Bank for the quarter ended March 31, 2008.

Attch,
Cc : The President
*Questions on this document should be referred to:
Mr. C. O. Boamah Director, FFCO Extension 2026
Mr. A. O. Odukomaiya Manager, FFCO.1 Extension 2105
Mr. N. Ngwenya Chief Finance Officer, FFCO.1 Extension 3230
Mrs. A. Bouabene-Kallel  Principal Financial Accountant, FFCO 1 Extension 3264
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African Development Bank

ADB FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008 AND 2007

o, -
1

The financial highlights for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 are summarized below.-The
comparative financia! statements and indicators for the threg months ended March 31, 2004 to -
LT WZOOS are summarlzed in schedules A and B attached to this memorandum. ety Ly

----- ;
SN I vocdntationg .

1, Results of Operations o _

1.1 Net income for the three months ended March 31, 2008 amounted to UA 6.56 million compared
to a net income of UA 75.16 million for the period ended March 31, 2007. The sharp decrease
is primarily attributable to an unrealized net valuation loss on borrowings and derivatives of UA
30.32 million in the first quarter of 2008, compared to a net unrealized gain of UA 30.85
million for the same period in 2007. The net valuation loss on derivatives is comprised of an
unrealized loss on fair valued borrowings and related derivatives of UA 19.31 million and an
unrealized loss of UA 11.01 million on derivatives related to non fair-valued financiai
instruments, primarily certain borrowings and loans.

The unrealized loss on fair valued borrowings and related derivatives of UA 19.31 million
during the three months ended March 2008 arose from a general deterioration in market credit
spreads. In particular, the widening of the credit spread differential between the swap curve
used to fair value the Bank’s derivatives and the AAA curve utilized to fair value the Bank’s
borrowings has amplified the effect of the basis risk exposure. While the basis risk exposure
on individual hedged positions has typically been relatively small, their combined effect given
the size of the portfolio of borrowings and derivatives has been magnified under the current
market conditions.

On the other hand, the unrealized loss of UA 11.01 million on the derivatives related to non
fair-valued financial instruments was primarily attributable to unrealized losses on loan related
swaps amounting to UA 12.97 million. The underlying loan assets are carried at amortized cost.

1.2 Loan income increased by UA 2.30 million and investment income decreased by UA 3.16
million reflecting the currently difficult market conditions. On the other hand, interest expense
also increased from UA 78.76 million in 2007 to UA 84.52 million in 2008, primarily due to
an increase in the volume of the borrowings.

Based on currently available information, there has been no change to the impairment
allowance of UA 6.69 million (USD 10.50 million, approximately 21%) that was recognized
in 2007 on the Bank’s investment of USD 50 million in'the asset-backed commercial paper
that matured on August 31, 2007 and has not been honored by the issuer, Golden Key, a
troubled SIV-lite.

SCCDHNA




African Development Bank

1.3 A comparative summary of loan charges in arrears for six months and over is represented

below: :
(UA thousands)
S L b \. Arrears on Cumulative Charges in
, Borrower : " " Principal Arrears at
v meemmalel mesem ey Ly - S AT —_— : csiredin
ceeaneationn e e ' 31/03/2008 31/03/2008.1- 31/03/2007, v nzi” v
e COMGROS - - - 6,981
COTE D'IVOIRE 230,461 114,965 116,386
et LIBERIA - - 86,803
SOMALIA 3,916 6,873 6,700
| SUDAN 42,365 43,376 36,714
ZIMBABWE 141,990 100,863 103,252
PRIVATE SECTOR 14,399 4,792 6,772
Total 433,131 270,869 363,608

1.4 Provision for impairment on charges receivable on loans and loan principal for the three
months ended March 31, 2008 amounted to UA 12.20 million compared to a provision of
UA 12.62 million in 2007. Cumulative impairment allowance on loan principal and
charges receivables at March 31, 2008 amounted to UA 202.84 million and UA 178.01

million, respectively.

1.5 The impairment allowance on equity investments at March 31, 2008 comprised the
following: 100% provision on BDEGL, NDBS, and Development Bank of Zimbabwe; and
22.32% on BDEAC Bank. Cumulative provision for impairment on all equity investments,
including ADF, at December 31, 2007 amounted to UA 51.31 million.

1.6 Administrative expenses before management fees for the quarter ended March 31, 2008
and 2007 are made up of the following:

(UA thousands)
2008 2007

_UA ) _UA %

Salaries 17,652 41.37 15,078 41.58
Benefits 9.006 2111 8.101 22.34
Total Salaries & benefits 26,658 62.48 23,179 63.92
Other Personnel-related 3,273 767 2,113 5.83
Short-term staff 393 0.92 301 0.83
Consultancy 2,303 _540 2,562 .07
Total Manpower Expense 32,627 76.47 28,155 77.65
Missions 3,261 7.64 2,779 7.66
Furniture & Equipment 1,519 3.56 923 2.55
Occupancy 2,313 5.42 1,994 5.50
Communication 1,734 4.06 1,131 3.12
Others, net 1,218 2.85 1,279 3.52

Total Administrative Expenses 42,672 100.00 36,261 100.00
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21

22

23

24

Total Bank Group administrative expenses (excluding depreciation} increased by 17.68%
from UA 36.26 million in 2007 to UA 42.67 million in 2008. The Bank’s share of the total
Bank group administrative expenses increased by UA 0.82 millicn or 9% from UA 9.05
million in 2007 to UA 9.87 million for 2008-

A sum‘rhary of tuial expenses from all sources (i.e. from ihe Bank’s admiristrative expense

- budget as well as-from bilateral and other multilateral sources) s presented as Schedule C,

T aew et

ot information on]y
Financial Condition
Total treasury investments (net of swaps and repos) including investments held to maturity, at
March 31, 2008, amounted to UA 5,933.07 million compared to UA 5,567.44 million at
March 31, 2007.
Loan disbursements for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 amounted to UA 120.52 million,
representing an increase of 47.68 percent over the disbursements of UA 81.61 million made

during the three months ended March 31, 2007.

Borrowings outstanding as at March 31, 2008 amounted to UA 6,480.48 million compared to
UA 5,931.51 million at March 31, 2007.

The Bank's reserves increased by UA 8.70 million during the period from an amount of
UA 2,531.80 million as at December 31, 2007 to UA 2,540.50 million as at March 31, 2008.

Selected Financial Indicators
See schedules A and B attached hereto.
Recommendation

The Board is invited to take note of the Financial Statements of the Bank for the three
months ended March 31, 2008.

Attchs.

1aqy
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African Development Bank

AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
- FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Amounts in UA mikians)

OPERATIONAL INCOME AND EXPENSES

Income from:
Loans M
Investments and related derivatives
Others debt securities

Total income from loans and investments

Borrowing expenses
Interest and amortized issuance costs
Net interest on borrowing-related derivatives
Unrealized (loss) /gain on fair-valued borrowings and related derivatives
Unrealized (loss) /gain non derivatives on non fair-valued borrowings and others
Provision for impairment on foan principal and charges receivables
Translation {lossesygains
Other income
Net operational income
OTHER EXPENSES
Administrative expenses
Depreciation - Property, equipment and intangible assets
Sundry (expensesypains
Total other expenses
[ncome before transfers approved by the Board of Governors

Transfers of income approved by the Board of Governors
NET INCOME

E TAL INDICAT! Tl

Increase/{deerease) in Loan Income (%)
Decrease/(increase) in Investment Income (%)
Increase/{decrease) in Borrowings expense {%)
Increase Adecrease) in Other expenses (%4)
{Decrease) / Increase in Net operational income (%)
Loan income/Borrowing expense ratio
{Decrease)Increase inincome before transfers (%)
Interest coverage ratio {1.25x)*

* [ndicative parameters
Slight differences may occur in tetals duc to rounding
** The information presented above for 2004 have not been restated.

SCHEDULE A

004 .

. ' 1\‘6.
AT "
1 L ..2008 2007 1 2006 yrei e, 2005

31,90 79.61 8390 8213 §1.00
59.55 627 43.93 380 29.29

0.25) . . ) )
141.20| 14232 127.83 120.24 110.29
(66.41) (66.19) 608 (5540 (5072

(18.1) (1257) (031} 300 .

(19.31) 155 466 (1829) .
(1.01y 8.30 14.08 6.83 1.03
(12.20) (1262) (11.64) m (435)

150 318 374 468 -
1.31 1.04 1.27 (.86 081
13.47 36.01 91.55 64.04 129.06
9.86) .05) ©3) . (0 @7
{154) {1.20) {1.41) (1.64) (L31)
{0.51) (0.60) 018 041) (0.13)
{11.93) (10.85) (10.53) (10.08) (10.16)
6.56 75.16 81.02 539 113.90
6.56 1516 §1.02 5396 118.90
2838 (5.12) 216 140 1.19
(5.04) 27 1527 3011 3135
13968 3828 (45.74) 332 (9.53)
975 103 449 {©.79) (1.36)
(18.52) {6.06) 42.94 (50.38) 1264
07 1.66 142 1.¥ 1.60
(©L27) (1.2 013 (3462 36.67
1.08 1.95 143 218 143
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AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Amounts in UA millions)

2

BALANCE SHEETS AS AT MARCH 31

B e EC L

Cash

Demand obligations
Treasury investments
Derivative assets
Non-negotiable instnoments
Accounts receivable

Loans

Accumulated provision for loan losses
Equity participations, net
Other debt securities

Other assets

LIABILITI [TAL & ERVES

Accounts payable

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and
payable for cash collateral received

Derivative liabilities

Borrowings

Capital- subscriptions paid

Cumnulative exchange adjustment on subscriptions
Reserves

Cumelative currency translation adjustment reserve

FINANCIAL INDICATORS/RATIOS

Average return on liquid funds(%;)

Average cost of borrowings(%)

Average retum on [oans(%)

Total debt/Total callable capital(%a) (80.00)*

Senior debt/Callable capital of non borrowing member (%) (80.00)*
Debt/Equity ratio(%)

Total Debt/Usable capital %

Reserve/Loan ratio (15.00%)*

Reserve/Debt ratio (%4)

Disbursements (UA millions)

* Indicative paramneters
Stight differences may occur in totals due t rounding

** The information presented abave for 2004 have not been restated.

SCHEDULE B
a
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
. LN .
5138 4300 90.37 3955 6210
380 722 7. 719 738
591421 "+ 6,312.25 5.806.85 5058.68 4510.76
443.60 . 28833 602 196,08 31744
14.80 2027 26.26 nn 41,50
333 11| 15457 311.02 37427 47292
55418 520824 SA6B R 557812 55087
(202 84) 1918 {196 54) (20882) (266 35)
204,33 126.81 171.41 161.52 16457
T8.3%

13.62] [o.44 16.64 16.9¢ 1095
12,58.15 12,267.47 11,148,080 1135478 1085164
65735 58323 353353 39517 49551
74333 878 08 45689 113 60

72806 47408 816 48534 306.23
648048 593151 5,868.11 570032 SATAT3
2,333]5 I,Jll,l‘n' 227012 22502 2181 60
(160 39) {156.54) {15242) (148.53) {146 56)
2.540.50] 238064 24740 2,240 57 268852
- - (451.39)

11,584.15 1226747 12,148.08 11,354,78 10,5164
3.85 405 317 3126 325
7.25 325 235 4.43 380
5.9 6.19 6.14 580 564

33.52 30.62 30.16 2041 3026

6831 61.40 60.18 63.25 8023
137.78 13020 132.20 142.53 170.42
57.61 5945 58.68 5294 61.72
49.66 49.85 4123 43,63 5073
39.20 4033 39.06 3542 41,90
120.52 81.61 107.54 13291 134.73
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African Development Bank

Financial Statements for the for the quarters
ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

<l

Balance Sheet

Income Statement

Statement of Recognized Income and Expense
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Page
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African Development Bank

INCOME STATEMENT Page 2
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2008-AND 2007
{UA thousands - Note B) ‘
| 2008 2007
OPERATIONAL INCOME R:_EXPENSES , Y
. Income from: AR ! eoRe e
Loans (Note N) 81,903 79,607
Investments and related derivatives {Note N) 59,548 62,712
Others debt securities (230) -
Total income from loans and investments 141,201 142,319
Borrowing expenses (Note ()
Interest and amortized issuance costs (66,410) (66,188)
Net interest on borrowing-related derivatives (18,108) {12,371)
Unrealized (loss)/gain on fair-valued borrowings and related derivatives (19,314) 22,546
Unrealized (loss)/ gain on derivatives on non fair-valued borrowings and others (11,012) 8,299
Provision for impairment (Note I)
Loan principal (4,888) {4,748)
Loan charges (7,315) {7,869)
Translation gains 2,302 3179
Other income 1,815 1,040
Net operational income 18,471 86,007
OTHER EXPENSES
Administrative expenses (Note P) (9,863) (9,049
Depreciation - Property, equipment and intangible assets (1,545) (1,189}
Sundry expenses (509) (612)
Total other expenses (11,917 (10,850)
Income before transfers approved by the Board of Governors 6,554 75,157
Transfers of income approved by the Board of Governors
NET INCOME 6,554 75,157

The accompanying noles to the financial statements form part of this Statement.
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Page 3
STATEMENT OF RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSE
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2008 AND 2007
(UA thousands-Notz B) .
RNt o

) 2008 2007
Gain on available-for-sale investments taken (o equity 2,152
Net Income recognized directly in equity 2,152 -
Net income for the period 6,554 75,157
TOTAL RECOGNIZED INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 8,706 75,157

The accompanying notes to the financial statements form part of this Statement.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Page 4
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2008 AND 2007
{UA thousands - Note B}
1 2008 2007

Cash flows from: ’
Operatagz getivities: . .

Net income 6,554 75157
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation - 1,545 1,189

Provision for loan impairment on loan principal and charges 12,203 12,617

Unrealized losses on investments and related derivatives =~ ~ i (3,045) (137)

Amortization of discount or premium on held-to-ntaturity investments 1,677 559

Amortization of borrowing issuance costs (1,596) 1,141

Unrealized gain on borrowings 30,325 (30,845)

Translation gains (2,502) {3,178)

Share of profits in associate - -

Net movements in derivatives 99,498 (14,383)
Changes in accrued income on loans 38,488 13,495
Changes in accrued financial charges {96,628) (62,343)
Changes in other receivables and pavables 238,984 126,537
Net cash provided by operating activities 321,749 119,809
Investing, lending and development activitics:
Disbursements on loans {120,520) (81.611)
Repayments of loans 180,594 169,201
Investments maturing after 3 months of acquisition:

Held-to-maturity portfolio (3£,027) (44,107)

Trading portfolio 5,506 (109,460)

Investment in other debt instrument - -
Changes in other assets (139) (2,673)
Equity participations movement (18,234) (8,195}
Net cash provided by H{used in) investing, lending and development activities 12,180 (76,845}
Financing activities:
New issues on borrowings 635,983 200,428
Repayments on borrowings {329,306) (123,188)
Net cash from capital subscriptions 1,535 3,939
Net cash provided by financing activitics 308,212 81,179
Effect of exchange rate changes on:

Cash and cash equivalents (41,232) 678
Increase in cash and cash equivalent 600,909 124,821
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 1,085,835 705,890
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,686,744 830,711
Composcd of:

Investments maturing within 3 months of acquisition

Held-to-maturity portfalio 47,681 -

Trading portfolio 1,587,680 1,526,035
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and payable

for cash collateral received - (743,327)
Cash 51,383 48,003
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,686,744 830,711
Supplementary disclosure:;
Movement resulting from exchange rates:

Loans (37,682) (5,394)

Borrowings (101,397) (2,076)

Currency swaps 51,898 1,131

The accompanying notes 1o the financial statements form part of this Statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2008 AND 2007
NOTE A - OPERATIONS AND AFFILIATED ORGANIZATIONS NOTE A

The African Deveiopment Bank (ADB or the Bank) is a multilateral development finance institutian _ ,
dedicated to the economic and social progress of its regional member states. The Bank financgs ' «n ¢
development projects and programs in its regional member states, typically in co-operation with othclr

national or internaiional development institutions. In furtherance of this objective, the Bank carticipates in e
the selection, study and preparation of projects contributing to suchrdevelopment and, where necessary,
provides technical assistance. The Bank also promotes investments of public and private capital in projects

and programs designed to contribute to the economic and social progress of the regional mem:her states. The
activities of the Bank are complemented by those of the African Development Fund (ADF or the Fund),

which was established by the Bank and certain countries; and the Nigeria Trust Fund (NTF), which is a

special fund administered by the Bank. Notably, the ADB, ADF, and NTF each have separate and distinct ‘
assets and liabilities. There is no recourse to the ADB for obligations in respect of any of the ADF or NTF |
liabilities. The ADF was established to assist the Bank in contributing to the economic and social
development of the Bank’s regional members, to promote co-operation and increased international trade
particularly among the Bank’s members, and to provide financing on concessional terms for such purposes.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Bank’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board. The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial asscis and financial
liabilities that are carried at fair value.

The significant accounting policies employed by the Bank are summarized below.

Revenue recognition

Interest income is accrued and recognized based on the effective interest rate for the time such instrument is
outstanding and held by the Bank. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash flows through the expected life of the financial asset to the asset’s net carrying amount.

Income from investments includes realized and unrealized gains and losses on trading financial instruments.

Dividends relating to investments in equity are recognized when the Bank’s right to receive payment is
established.

Functional and presentation currencies

The Bank conducts its operations in the currencies of its member countries. As a result of the application of
IAS 21 revised, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, the Bank prospectively changed its
functional currency from the currencies of all its member countries to the Unit of Account (UA) effective
January 1, 2005. The UA is also the currency in which the financial statements are presented. The value of
the Unit of Account is defined in Article 5.1 (b) of the Agreement Establishing the Bank (the Agreement) as
equivalent to one Special Drawing Right (SDR) of the International Monetary Fund (IMF) or any unit
adopted for the same purpose by the IMF.
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Currency translation

Income and expenses are translated to UA at the ratés prévailihg on the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities are translated into UA at rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. The rates used for
translating of currencies into UA at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are reported in Note R. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities are translated into UA at historical rates. Tiansiation differences are included in the .
determination of net income. Capital subscriptions are recorded in UA at the rates prevailing at the time of ;-
receiptitTihie. traiislation difference relating: to payments of .capital subscriptions is reported in the financialats. fra
- statements as the Cumulative Exchange Adjustment on Subscriptions (CEAS). This is composed of thg...
» h. difference between the UA amount at the predetermined rate and the UA amount using the rateiat the time -
-~ of receipt. When currencies are converted into other currencies, the resulting gains or losses are included in
the determination of net income.

-

Member Countries’ Subscriptions

Although the Agreement establishing the ADB allows for a member country to withdraw from the Bank, no
member has ever withdrawn its membership voluntarily, nor has any indicated to the Bank that it intends to
do so. The stability in the membership reflects the fact that the members are independent African and non-
African countries, and that the purpose of the Bank is to contribute to the sustainable economic development
and social progress of its regional member countries individually and jointly. Accordingly, as of March 31,
2008, the Bank did not expect to distribute any portion of its net assets due to member country withdrawals.

In the unlikely event of a withdrawal by a member, the Bank shall arrange for the repurchase of the former
member’s shares. The repurchase price of the shares is the value shown by the books of the Bank on the
date the country ceases to be a member, hereafter referred to as “the termination date.” The Bank may
partially or fully offset amounts due for shares purchased against the member’s liabilities on loans and
guarantees due to the Bank. The former member would remain liable for direct obligations and contingent
liabilities to the Bank for so long as any parts of the loans or guarantees contracted before the termination
date are outstanding. If at a date subsequent to the termination date, it becomes evident that losses may not
have been sufficiently taken into account when the repurchase price was determined, the former member
may be required to pay, on demand, the amount by which the repurchase price of the shares would have
been reduced had the losses been taken into account when the repurchase price was determined. In addition,
the former member remains liable on any call, subsequent to the termination date, for unpaid subscriptions,
to the extent that it would have been required to respond if the impairment of capital had occurred and the
call had been made at the time the repurchase price of its shares was determined.

Were a member to withdraw, the Bank may set the dates in respect of payments for shares repurchased. If,
for example, paying a former member would have adverse consequences for the Bank’s financial position,
the Bank could defer payment until the risk had passed, and indefinitely if appropriate. Furthermore, shares
that become unsubscribed for any reason may be offered by the Bank for purchase by eligible member
countries, based on the share transfer rules approved by the Board of Governors. In any event, no payments
shall be made until six months after the termination date.

[f the Bank were to terminate its operations, all liabilities of the Bank would first be settled out of the assets
of the Bank and then, if necessary, out of members’ callable capital, before any distribution could be made
to any member country. Such distribution is subject to the prior decision of the Board of Governors of the
Bank and would be based on the pro-rata share of each member country.




-

African Development Bank

Employee benefits

1) Pension obligations

The Bank operates a contributory defined benefit pension plan for its employees. The 3iz‘f Retirement Plan
(SRP) provides benefit payments to participants upon retirement.- A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employeé will receive on retirement, usially Zependent on
one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. An aciuarial valuatiun of the cost of
providing ‘benefits for theSRBwisidetermined--using the Projécteds Wnit:Credits Method: Upan reaching
retirement age, pensioh is calculated based.on.the “average remuneration for the final three years of
pensionable service and ¢he pension is subject to-annual inflationary adj:istments. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognized immédis%ely in retained ecarnings in the year they occur. Past service cost is recognized
immediately to the extent that benefits are already vested, otherwise, amortized on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become vested. The pension liability is recognized as part of other
accounts payable in the balance sheet. The liability represents the present value of the Bank’s defined
benefit obligations, net of the fair value of plan assets and unrecognized actuarial gains and losses.

2) Post-employment medical benefits

The Bank operates a contributory defined Medical Benefit Plan (MBP), which provides post-employment
healthcare benefits to eligible former staff, including retirees. Membership of the MBP includes both staff
and retirees of the Bank. The entitlement to the post-retirement healthcare benefit is usually conditional on
the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period.
The expected costs of these benefits derive from contributions from plan members as well as the Bank and
are accrued over the period of employment and during retirement. Contributions by the Bank to the MBP
are charged to expenses and included in the statement of income and expenses. The MBP Board, an
independent body created by the Bank, determines the adequacy of the contributions and is authorized to
recommend changes to the contribution rates of both the Bank and plan members.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the Bank’s balance sheet when the Bank assumes
related contractual rights or obligations.

1) Financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial assets.
Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All trading assets are carried at fair value through the income statement and gains and losses are reported in
the income statement in the period in which they arise. The investments in the trading portfolio are acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also categorized as held-for-trading.

i) Loans and receivables

The Bank has classified demand obligations, accrued income and receivables from loans and investments
and other sundry amounts as receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Bank provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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-cs'nor‘rried COSt Sz, ine effective interest method

iij}  Held-to-maturity investments
The Bank has classified its investments in certain debt securities as held-to-maturity. Held-to-maturity,

. investments, azg ypon-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities . | ..
. that- the Bank’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturlty Held-to-maturiis

investments are mlbsmucntly measured at amortized cost. Held to—matunty mvestments are carried at
|
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iv) Available-for-sale fi mmczal assets

~ The Bank has classified equity investments over wl‘ych it does ‘not have control ur significant influence as
“available-for-sale. Available-for-sale mvestmenfs e those ‘interided to be held for an indefinite period of

time, and may or may not be sold in the future. Gains and Igsses arising from changes in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets are recognized directly in equity, until the financial asset is derecognized
or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is recognized in proﬁt
or loss.

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity and available-for-
sale investments are recognized on a trade-date basis, which is the date on which the Bank commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Loans are recognized when cash is advanced to the borrowers. Financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Securities purchased under resale agreements and securities sold under repurchase agreements are reported
at market rates. The Bank receives securities purchased under resale agreements, monitors the fair value of
the securities and if necessary may require additional collateral.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash, are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value and have a time to maturity upon acquisition of three months or less.

2) Financial liabilities

i)  Borrowings

In the ordinary course of its business, the Bank borrows funds in the major capital markets for lending and
liquidity purposes. The Bank issues debt instruments denominated in various currencies, with differing
maturities at fixed or variable interest rates. The Bank’s borrowing strategy is driven by three major factors,
namely: timeliness in meeting cash flow requirements, optimizing asset and liability management with the
objective of mitigating exposure to financial risks, and providing cost-effective funding. In addition to long
and medium-term borrowings, the Bank also undertakes short-term borrowing for cash and liquidity
management purposes only. Borrowings not designated at fair value through profit or loss are carried on the
balance sheet at amortized cost with interest expense determined using the effective interest method.
Borrowing expenses are recognized in profit or loss and include the amortization of issuance costs,
discounts and premiums, which is determined using the effective interest method. Certain of the Bank’s
borrowings have been obtained from the governments of some member countries of the Bank and are
interest free. In accordance with IAS 20 — “Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance”, the benefit of borrowing at subsidized rates from member countries’ governments
has not been recognized through the imputation of interest expense in the financial statements.
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if)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held for trading, and those designated at fair value

through profit or loss at inéeption Derivativés are categorized as held-for-trading. The Bank primarily

applies_ fair value designation to ‘borrowings which have been swapped into floating-rate debt using .
derivitive contracts. In these cases, the designation’ of the borrowing at fair value through profit orops-is ¢ cn =

made in order to significantly reduce an accoliting mismatch which would otherwise have arisenif the ~- -
aonvisidewer; borrowings were carried,on:the balance sheet at amortlzed cost wh le the.related swaps.are carried,gn.ihe 5 -
balance sheet at fair value. i ldnee S¢
e . gk
i) Ciher liabilities - > ;.:I’L

4 losses All financial liabilities that are not derivatives or designated at fair value through proﬁt or loss are recorded
at amortized cost. The amounts include accrued finance charges on borrowings and other accounts payable.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are discharged or cancelled or when they expire.

Derivatives

The Bank uses derivative instruments in its portfolios for asset/liability management, cost reduction, risk
management and hedging purposes. These instruments include cross-currency swaps and interest rate swaps.
The derivatives on borrowings are used to modify the interest rate or currency characteristics or both of the
debt the Bank issues. This economic relationship is established on the date the debt is issued, and
maintained throughout the terms of the contracts. The interest component of these derivatives is reported as
part of borrowing expenses.

Although IAS 39 allows hedge accounting for certain qualifying hedging relationships, the Bank has elected
not to apply hedge accounting to any qualifying hedging relationship, but rather classifies all derivatives as
held-for-trading at fair value, with all changes in fair value recognized in the income statement. When the
criteria for the application of the fair value option are met, then the related debt is also carried at fair value
with changes in fair value recognized in the income statement.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other non-financial host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract
and the host contract is not carried at fair value with unrealized gains or losses reported in profit or loss.
Such derivatives are stripped from the host contract and measured at fair value with unrealized gains and
losses reported in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

1) Assets carried at amortized cost

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets. 1f
the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, that asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit characteristics and collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred afier the initial recognition
of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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If the Bank determines that there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present vaiu: of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been, 1ncurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. For sove&qngn guaranteed loans, the estimated i 1mpa|m~er'. arises from delays that may
be experienced in u,celvmg amounts due. Eor non-sovereign-guaranteed loans, the impairment reflects.. -
" management’s best egtug_atq,of the nOH—COllCCtlbllLtX‘ 400 whple,ori in, Qart,_of amounts due as wel! as delays m
' “ the receipt of such amounts. . . s vane,

The carrymg amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amountiof theryiy,
loss is recognizedinCthe iricome statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest ™~
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. '

Interest and charges are accrued on all loans including those in arrears.

2) Available-for-sale assets

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. For available-for-sale equity instruments carried at fair value, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining
whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale equity instruments carried
at fair value, the cumulative loss, which is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, net of any impairment loss previously recognized in profit or loss, is reclassified from
equity to the income statement, Impairment losses recognized in the income statement on avatlable-for-sale
equity instruments carried at fair value are reversed through equity.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an available-for-sale equity
instrument that is carried at cost because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the impaired equity
instrument and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar equity instrument. Once recognized, impairment losses on these equity instruments
carried at cost are not reversed.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported on a net basis when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Fair value disclosure

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. For financial assets
with inactive markets or unlisted securities, the Bank establishes fair value by using valuation techniques
that incorporate the maximum use of market data inputs. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly
used by market participants. Financial instruments for which market quotations are not readily available
have been valued using methodologies and assumptions that necessarily require the use of subjective
judgments. Accordingly, the actual value at which such financial instruments could be exchanged in a
current transaction or whether they are actually exchangeable is not readily determinable. Management
believes that these methodologies and assumptions are reasonable; however, the values actually realized in a
sale might be different from the fair values disclosed.
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The methods and assumptions used by the Bank in estimating the fair values of financial instruments -are as

- follows:

R LA R

Cdsh: The carrying amount is the fair value.

e . . . Carenr a1 . .
Ins<stients: Fair values for investment sccurities are base’6n quoted fharket prices, where availabls. J7
L . .. . o . ) SR -
quuicd market prices are not available, fair values are based on qudted market pricec of comparahie

dnstruments., - : ‘;;_’u,_?d't,'l_'ff::.“_i: s ez ThAAR . .
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Borrowings: The fair values of the Bank’s borrowings are based on market quotations when possible or
valuation techniques based on discSunted cash flow models using LIBOR market-determined discount
curves adjusted by the Bank’s credit sprcéfd!"di’é'dit spreads are obtained from market data as well as
indicative quotations received from certain counterparties for the Bank’s new public bond issues. The Bank
also uses systems based on industry standard pricing models and valuation techniques to value borrowings
and their associated derivatives. The models use market-sourced inputs such as interest rates, yield curves,
exchange rates and option volatilities. Valuation models are subject to internal and periodic external
reviews.

Equity investments: The underlying assets of entities in which the Bank has equity investments carried at
fair value are periodically fair valued both by fund managers and independent valuation experts using
market practices. The fair value of investments in listed enterprises is based on the latest available quoted
bid prices. The fair value of investments in unlisted entities is assessed using appropriate methods, for
example, discounted cash flows. The fair value of the Bank’s equity participations is estimated as the
Bank’s percentage ownership of the net asset value of the funds.

Derivative financial instruments. The fair values of derivative financial instruments are based on market
quotations when possible or valuation techniques that use market estimates of cash flows and discount rates.
The Bank also uses valuation tools based on industry standard pricing models and valuation techniques to
value derivative financial instruments. The models use market-sourced inputs such as interest rates, yield
curves, exchange rates and option volatilities. All financial models used for valuing the Bank’s financial
instruments are subject to both internal and periodic external reviews.

Loans: The Bank does not sell its loans, nor does it believe there is a comparable market for its loans. The
fair value of loans reported in these financial statements represents management’s best estimates of the
present value of the expected cash flows of these loans. For multi-currency and single currency fixed rate
loans, fair values are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on the year-end variable lending
rate in that currency, adjusted for impairment. For all loans not impaired, fair value adjustments are made to
reflect expected loan losses.

Day one profit and loss

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price (i.e.
the fair value of the consideration given or received). A gain or loss may only be recognized on initial
recognition of a financial instrument if the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or
repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets.
On initial recognition, a gain or loss may not be recognized when using a valuation technique that does not
incorporate data solely from observable markets. The Bank only recognizes gains or losses after initial
recognition to the extent that they arise from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants
would consider in setting a price. The gain or loss is amortized over the life of the applicable borrowing on a
straight-line basis.
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Investment in associate

Under 1AS 28, “Investments in Associates”, the ADF is considered an associate of the Bank. An associate is

an entity over which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the entity’s financial and

operatm policy decisions. The relationship between the Bank and the ADF is described in more ds gll i

atis Ndte J. 1AS 28 requires that thi eqi.lty method be used to account for investments in associates. Unggi-the
eﬂmty methoa ‘afi-invesimeid i ‘an associate is initially recognized at cost and the carrying angamt is :
incréased of decreased to recognize the investor’s share of the profit or loss:of the-investee after thelg@te 0 e B
acquisition. The investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee is recogmzcd in the investor’s income
statement.- Tl -subscriptions by the Bank to the capital of the -ADF occurred. between 1574 and 1990. At_
March 31, 2008, such subscriptions cumulatively represented approximately 1% of the ecouomic interest in-
the capital of the ADF. Although ADF is a not-for-profit entity and has never'dlstnbuted any dividend to its
subscribers since its creation in 1972, the revisions to IAS 28 require that the equity .method be used to
account for the Bank’s investment in the ADF. Furthermore, in accordance with IAS 36, the net investment
in the ADF is assessed for impairment. Cumulative losses as measured under the equity method are limited
to the investment’s original cost as the ADB has not guaranteed any potential losses of the ADF.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is measured at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement when they are incurred.

the difference between cost and estimated residual values over estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Buildings: 15-20 years

Fixtures and fittings: 6-10 years
Fumniture and equipment: 3-7 years
Motor vehicles: 5 years

I
|
! Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to amortize
|
|
I

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed periodically and adjusted if appropriate. Assets

that are subject to amortization are reviewed annually for impairment. An asset’s carrying amount is written

down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its
‘ value in use. Gains and losses on disposal are determined as the difference between proceeds and the asset’s
! carrying amount and are included in the income statement in the period of disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include computer systems software and are stated at historical cost less amortization.
Amortization on intangible assets is calculated using the straight-line method over 3-5 years.
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Leases

The Bank has entered into several operating lease agreements, including those for its offices in Tunisia and
in certain other regional member couatries. Under sych agreements, all the risks and benefits of ownership
are effectively retained by the lessor. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income

stateraent on! 4“Straight-linéchasis over the period of the: lease. Benefits received and receivable as; an gy e

incentive to enter into an of@rating lease are also recognized.on a straight-line basis over the lease *er\m

- Witetilaiopeérating lease is terminated before.the lease period has expired, any payment required to beagad EhorEra

to the-lessor by wayof penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in which. the- termination takes

places. - .o . i AL gL
NS o ©onm, -
Transfers approved by the Board of Governors -r

In accordance with the Agreement establishing the Bank, the Board of Governors is the sole authority for
approving allocations from income to surplus account or distributions to other entities for development
purposes. Surplus consists of earnings from prior years which are retained by the Bank until further decision
is made on their disposition or the conditions of transfer for specifted uses have been met. Distributions for
development purposes, referred to as “Board of Governors® Approved Transfers”, are reported as expenses
on the Income Statement in the year of approval. Transfers for development purposes may be funded from
amounts previously transferred to surplus account or from the current year’s income.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings of the Bank consist of amounts allocated to reserves from prior year’s income, balance of
amounts allocated to surplus after deducting transfers approved by the Board of Governors, unallocated
current year net income and expenses recognized directly in equity as required by IFRS.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS, management makes certain estimates,
assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses as
well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results could differ from such estimates. Estimates and
judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The most
significant judgments and estimates are summarized below:

1) Significant judgments

The Bank’s accounting policies require that assets and liabilities be designated at inception into different
accounting categories. Such decisions require significant judgment and relate to the following
circumstances:

Held-for-trading - In classifving financial assets or liabilities as “trading”, the Bank has determined that
such assets or liabilities meet its description and set criteria for classification as such.

Fair value through profit and loss - In designating financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, the Bank has determined that such assets or liabilities meet the criteria for this classification.

Held-to-maturity - The Bank follows the guidance of IAS 39 on classifying non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. In making this judgment, the
Bank evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.
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2) Significant estimates
The Bank also uses estimates for its financial statements in the following circumstances:

Impairment losses on loans and advances - At each financial reporting date, the Bank reviews its loan
portfolios for impairment. The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
individual loans. If such objective evidence exists, impairm ent is determined by discouriti:g cxpected future

cash flows using the loan’s. or} Eﬁgﬁlﬁe\ffecﬁve interest fate and. co&n;mring this amount to the loan’s net

....... I3 ,‘-‘,:L Frge =o o~

carrying amount. Determining the amount and timing of" furiiid" Cash fiows 6 ifipaired loans requires
significant judgment.}ilf the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed loan, thit loan is inctuded in a group of loans with similar credit characteristics and
collectively assessed for impairment. Objective evidence of impairment for a group of loans may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group, or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.
Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are
reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Fair value of financial instruments - The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets is determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example, models}) are
used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the area that created them. All valuation models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect
actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical, valuation models use only observable
data; however, areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require
management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments.

Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments - The Bank determines that available-for-sale equity
investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in fair value below the
carrying amount. The determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this
judgment, the Bank evaluates any evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry
and sector performance, changes in technology, and operational and financing cash flows.

NOTE C - THE EFFECT OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and its International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) issued some new and revised Standards and Interpretations, which
becomes effective for the Bank’s financial statements for the period beginning on January 1, 2009.

IFRS 8, Operating Segments, which becomes effective for financial statements for the period beginning
January 1, 2009 replaces the segmental reporting requirements of 1AS 14, Segment Reporting, and requires
alignment of the segments in the financial statements with those used internally by management in the
allocation of resources and assessing performance. The amendments to IAS 1, require the Bank to present
in separate statements, changes in equity related to its shareholders and those related to comprehensive
income (i.e., non-shareholder related components), including related reclassification adjustments of those
components. It also requires the presentation of a balance sheet as at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period in a complete set of financial statements when the Bank applies an accounting policy
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retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement. None of these new standards or amendments is
expected to have a significant impact on the Bank’s financial statements.

On February 14,2007, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB}) issued amendmerts to IAS 32
and IAS 1. The amendhents require an entity to classify as part of its equity.those financial instru:ents that

it issves that a-2*+itker (a) puttable financial instriments, or (b)-financial instruments or components -of

S
q't U ’V i

financial instruments that impose an obligation to deliver to agother 'party a pro-rata share of ns-nct assets

'only on llqwdatlon if certain criteria are met. Prior to these: émendments"such financial instrunients were

"to be classified as liabilities. The amendments are effective’ for annual periods beginning on or after

(I

1 January 2009, with early adoption permitted:- .e.. IL
AMGit

Subscriptions by the member countries to the Bank’s capital described in Note B are puttable financial
instruments that meet the requirements for equity classification under the amended standards. While the
standards prior to the amendments required liability classification by the issuer of puttable financial
instruments, the Bank has always reported the subscriptions by the member countries to its capital as equity.
Consequently, the early adoption of these amended standards had no effects on the Bank’s financial
statements.

Under the Agreement establishing the Bank, such instruments provide an equal and residual right to its
member countries that are subordinate to the rights of its creditors. The equity classification requirements
under the amended standards are fully consistent with the Bank’s classification of its capital subscriptions as

equity.
NOTE D - RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

In carrying out its development mandate, the Bank seeks to maximize its capacity to assume core business
risks resulting from its lending and investing operations while at the same time minimizing its non-core
business risks (market risk, counterparty risk, and operational risk) that are incidental but nevertheless
critical to the execution of its mandate.

The degree of risk the Bank is willing to assume to achieve its development mandate is limited by its risk-
bearing capacity. This institutional risk appetite is embodied in the Bank’s capital adequacy policy and its
commitment to maintain a prudent risk profile consistent with the highest credit rating.

The policies, processes and procedures by which the Bank manages its risk profile continually evolve in
response to market, credit, product, and other developments. The highest level of risk management oversight
is assured by the Bank’s Board of Executive Directors, which is chaired by the President. In addition to
approving all risk management policies, the Executive Directors regularly review trends in the Bank’s risk
profiles and performance to ensure compliance with the underlying policies.

The guiding principles by which the Bank manages its core and non-core risks are governed by the General
Authority on the Bank’s Financial Products and Services (“the FPS Authority”) and the General Authority
on Asset Liability Management (“the ALM Authority™) .

The FPS Authority provides the framework under which the Bank develops and implements financial
products and services for its borrowers’ and separate guidelines which prescribe the rules governing the
management of credit and operational risk for the Bank’s sovereign and non-sovereign loan and equity
investment portfolios.

1 L l.)ll -
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The ALM Authority is the over-arching framework through which Management has been vested with the
authority to manage the Bank’s financial- assets and liabilities within defined parameters. The ALM
Authority sets out the guiding principles fcr managing the Bank’s interest rate risk, currency exchange rate
risk, liquidity risk, counterparty*credit risk and operational risk. The ALM Authority covers the Bank’s

: entir’e‘"ﬁrréi,?’ YRALM activities such as debt-funding operations and investment of quuid resources. J{ also -

includes the iiferest rate and «urrency risk management aspects of the Bank,S'iendmg and equlty investment
operations. o dive o - T ro

+ K Cadera.

-Under tie umbrella of the FPS Authorlty and the ALM Authorlty, the Pre51dent is authorized to approve and-

amend more detailed opcrational guidelines as necessary, upon thecrecomrhendations of the Asse ard
Liability Management Committee (ALCQO). ALCO is the other oversight and control organ of the Bank’s
risk management activities. It is the Bank’s most senior management forum on risk management issues and
is chaired by the Vice President for Finance.

ALCO meets on a regular basis to perform its oversight role. Among ALCO’s key functions, it reviews
regular and ad-hoc finance and risk management reports and projections, approves strategies to adjust the
balance sheet, and confirms country and project credit risk ratings and the associated incurred loss
estimates. ALCO is supported by several standing working groups that report on specific issues including
country risk, non-sovereign credit risk, counterparty credit risk, interest rate risk, currency risk, operational
risk, financial projections, and financial products and services.

Day-to-day operational responsibility for implementing the Bank's risk management policies and guidelines
is delegated to the appropriate business units, and the Financial Management Department is responsible for
monitoring the day-to-day compliance with those policies and guidelines.

The following sections describe in detail the manner in which the individual sources of risk are managed by
the Bank.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the potential financial loss due to default of one or more debtors/obligors. Credit risk is the
largest source of risk for the Bank arising essentially from its lending and treasury operations.

The Bank manages three principal sources of credit risk: (i) sovereign credit risk on its public sector
portfolio; (ii) non-sovereign credit risk on its portfolio of private sector, non-sovereign and enclave projects;
and (iii) counterparty credit risk on its portfolio of treasury investments and derivative transactions. These
risks are managed within an integrated framework of credit policies, guidelines and processes, which are
described in more detail in the following sections.

Sovereign Credit Risk

When the Bank lends to public sector borrowers, it generally requires a full sovereign guarantee or the
equivalent from the borrowing member state. In extending credit to sovereign entities, it is exposed to
country risk which includes potential losses arising from a country’s inability or unwillingness to service its
obligations to the Bank. The Bank manages country credit risk through financial policies and lending
strategies, including individual country exposure limits and overall creditworthiness assessments. These
include the assessment of the country’s macroeconomic performance as well as its socio-political conditions
and future growth prospects.
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Country exposure .
The Bank’s exposure at March 31, 2008 to borrowing member countries with respect to its lending activities
is summarized below: _ : .

N .
IR Lt LI

oa . vtk

(A_mgg;;us in UA fhc;'%sanc_ls)

N st e . T
: . T .% of Total
S S R N 1Y - " " UnsignedLoans  Undishursed  OQuistanding Outsanding
Country, “~ Loans . Total Loans* Amounts Balance Balance Lpans
-+ (Angeta, 1t L T e 2 i 875 . - 875 A;;,;}‘Q.P:Zu
Botswana' - .. 0! orgar 5 8,343 . - 8,343 0.7
Cameroon - 6 60,559 - 16,104 44,455 0.0
Congo 2 35,250 - - 35,290 0.64
Cdte D'lvaire** 15 350,055 - 2,543 347512 6.29
Bem Rep Congo 10 713,026 - - 113,026 12.91
Egypt . 12 1,017,287 - 462,587 554,700 10.04
Ethiopia 5 22,122 - - 22122 0.40
Gabon 17 432104 - 272,660 159,444 2.89
Ghana 5 8,924 - - 8,924 0.15
Guinea 4 13,173 - - 13173 024
Kenya 4 7,803 - - 7803 0.14
Lesotho 1 3% . . 338 0.1
Liberia 7 3,165 - - 3,165 0.08
Malawi 1 4934 - - 4,034 0.0
Mauritania 3 24 453 - - 24 453 044
Mauritius 9 48,476 - 36,275 12,201 0.22
Morocco 23 1,980,173 145,573 530,314 1,304,286 2381
Multinational 5 53,733 - 4917 43816 0.88
Namibia B 83,378 - 21,233 62,145 142
Nigeria 11 167,386 - - 197,386 357
Senegal 3 31,385 - - 31,385 0.57
Seychelles 5 4,181 - - 4,161 0.08
Somalia* 3 3,016 - - 3916 0.07
South Africa 4 150,524 - - 150,524 272
Sudan** 5 53175 - - 53179 0.96
Swaziland 8 77,889 - 8497 69,392 1.28
Tanzania 1 2,753 - - 2,793 0.05
Tunisia 28 1,544,238 96,151 339,229 1,108,858 2007
Uganda i 857 - - 857 0.02
Zambia 4 821 - - 8,211 0.15
Zimbabwe™ 12 190,311 - - 190,311 3.45
Total Public Sector 230 7,134,061 41,74 1,694,359 5,197,978 94.10
Total Private Sector 43 1,175,503 517,853 331,350 326,198 5.90
Total m 8,309,564 759,677 2,025,709 5,524,176 100.00

*Excludes fully repaid loans and cancelled loans.

** Country in arears as at 31.03.2008
*Slight differences may occur in totals due to rounding
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Systematic credit risk assessment

The foundation of the Bank's credit risk management framework is a systematic credit risk assescment based

on a uniform internal credit risk rating scale that is calibrated to reflect the Bank’s statlﬂ‘f,al loss
* expectations as shown in the following table.

) African Development Bank
|

Risk Rating . _Dg:scription " Risk Class Internationa!
S ' . - Equivalent..
- S Excellem | Veiy Lo#®Risk A-BBB ~7|
2 ‘Strong Low Risk BB __
Al %A B - k

3 Go?d 1. Moderate Risk B

4 Fair -

5 Acceptable . .

6 Marginal High Risk CCC

7 Special Attention

8 Substandard . .

9 Doubiful Very High Risk <CCC

10 Known Loss

These sovereign risk credit ratings are derived from a risk assessment on five risk indices that include
macro-economic performance, debt sustainability, socio-political factors, business environment and
portfolio performance. These five risk indices are combined to derive a composite sovereign country risk
index and a composite non-sovereign country risk index which in turn are converted into separate country
risk rating for the sovereign and non-sovereign portfolios. These country risk ratings are validated against
the average country risk ratings from accredited rating agencies and other specialised international bodies.
The ALCO reviews the country ratings on a quarterly basis to ensure compliance with country exposure
limits, changes in country credit risk conditions, and to approve changes in loss provisioning, if any.
| Portfolio risk monitoring !
In 2008, the overall risk profile of the Bank's sovereign guaranteed portfolio improved slightly, mainly due
| to the combined effect of improvement in the weighted average credit rating of certain regional member
| countries and the Bank’s increased exposure to high graded countries.

It is the Bank’s policy that if the payment of principal, interest or other charges with respect to any Bank
i Group credit becomes 30 days overdue, no new loans to that member country, or to any public sector
| borrower in that country, will be presented to the Board of Directors for approval, nor will any previously

approved loan be signed, until all arrears are cleared. Furthermore, for such countries, disbursements on all
| loans to or guaranteed by that member country are suspended until all overdue amounts have been paid.
| These countries also become ineligible in the subsequent billing period for a waiver of 0.50% on the
‘ commitment fees charged on qualifying undisbursed loans.

Although the Bank benefits from the advantages of preferred creditor status and rigorously monitor the
exposure on non-performing sovereign borrowers, some countries have experienced difficulties to service
their debts to the Bank on a timely basis. As previously described, the Bank makes provisions for
impairment in its sovereign loan portfolio commensurate with the assessment of the incurred loss in such
portfolio.

To cover potential unexpected credit-related losses due to extreme and unpredictable events, the Bank
maintains a conservative risk capital cushion for sovereign credit risks. The Bank’s capital adequacy policy
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articulates differentiated risk capital requirements for all credit-sensitive assets (loans and eqmty
investments) plus: contmgem liabilities (guarantees and client risk management products) in each risk class’.

-ul-

Non-Sovereign Credit Risk

“When the Bank lends to private sector borrowers or to:en¢lave projects it does not benefit from full
sovereign_guamntees The Bank may also provide fi nancmg to credltworthy commercially oriented Qntme,sm o

thiat are publicly owned, without a sovereign guarantee: "L, T oo, oo

To assess the credit risk of non-sovereign projects or fac_:i[ﬁ_gs the Bank uses a simitar uniform internai
credit risk rating as for sovereign projects. However, these internal credit ratings are derlved on the basis of
four major groups of factors.

The first factor involves the overall evaluation and assessment of the project company’s financial strength.
This assessment looks at: 1) capacity of the project to generate sufficient cash flow to service its debt; 2) the
company’s operating performance and profitability; 3) the project company’s capital structure, financial
flexibility and liquidity positions.

Secondly, the following, four main non-financial parameters are analyzed: 1) the outlook of the industry in
which the project company operates; 2) the competitive position of the project company within the industry;
3) the strength of the project company’s management with particular emphasis on its ability to deal with
adverse conditions; 4) the quality of the information on which the analysis is based.

Thirdly, the risk factors that consider the structure of the facility in terms of maturity, the existence of third
party guarantee, and the value of any assigned collateral and other credit enchancement are extensively
examined.

Finally, the project company’s risk rating is adjusted to reflect the overall host country risk rating.

All new non-sovereign projects require a minimum initial credit rating and undergo rigorous project
approval. The ALCO reviews the non-sovereign credit rating of each project on a quarterly basis and may
recommend changes if justified by evolving country and project conditions.

In compliance with the revised IFRS, the Bank no longer makes general provisions to cover the expected
losses in the performing non-sovereign portfolio. For the non-performing portfolio, the Bank makes a
specific provision based on an assessment of the credit impairment, or incurred loss, on each loan.

In addition to private sector lending, the Bank makes equity investments in private sector projects, either
directly or through investment funds. To the extent possible, equity investments are carried at fair value. In
the event that the fair value of an equity investment cannot be reliably determined, it is carried at amortized
cost, and periodically assessed for impairment. The Bank recognizes loss provision based on accepted
impairment tests measured against the carrying cost of the equity investment

To cover potential unexpected credit related losses due to extreme and unpredictable events, the Bank
maintains a conservative risk capital cushion for non-sovereign credit risks.

! Reflecting its higher risk operating environment and unavoidable portfolio concentrations, the Bank requires risk capital backing that is three to ten times more
conservative than BIS commercial banking standards. Very low risk = 25%, low risk = 28%, moderate risk = 35%, high risk = 50%, very high risk = 75%, and
equity investments = 100%.
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Credit Exposure Limits
The Bank operates a system of exposure limits to ensure the development of an adequately diversified
portfolio. The Bank manages credit risk at the global level (combined sovereign guaranteed and non-
sovereign guaranteed portfolios) by ensuring that in the aggregate, the total country exposure limit does not

latgest‘outstanding portfolio (eutstandmg loans:plus potential new lending) that:can be supported, l;xht_he
current-level'of risk capital applying the Bank’s capital-adequacy policy.E ach-specific country limit is based: .
on the economic potential of the country and perceived risk level. Country exposure limits are revne,wedv

“annually and are used ast:a risk-based benchmark to plan the Bank’s medium:term, Chuntry assistange
redsfrategies. : : tfrate

The credit exposure on the non-sovereign portfolio is further managed by limiting exposures to certain
industry sectors, equity investments and single obligor. In addition, the Bank generally requires a range of
securities and guarantees from project sponsors to partially mitigate the credit risk for direct private sector
loans.

Counterparty Credit Risk

In the normal course of business, the Bank utilizes various financial instruments to meet the needs of its
borrowers, manage its exposure to fluctuations in market interest and currency rates, and to temporarily
invest its liquid resources prior to disbursement. All of these financial instruments involve, to varying
degrees, the risk that the counterparty to the transaction may be unable to meet its obligation to the Bank.

Given the nature of the Bank’s business, it is not possible to completely eliminate counterparty credit risk,
however, the Bank minimizes this risk by executing transactions within a prudential framework of approved
counterparties, minimum credit rating standards, counterparty exposure limits, and counterparty credit risk
mitigation measures.

Counterparties must meet the Bank’s minimum credit rating requirements and are approved by the Bank’s
Vice President for Finance. For local currency operations, less stringent minimum credit rating limits are
permitted in order to provide adequate availability of investment opportunities and derivative counterparties
for implementing appropriate risk management strategies. ALCO approves counterparties that are rated
below the minimum rating requirements,

Counterparties are classified as investment counterparties, derivative counterparties, and trading
counterparties. Their ratings are closely monitored.

Trading counterparties are generally rated A/A2.

Mal

adlAr
exceed 15% of the maximum sustainable portfolio. The maximum sustainable portfolio is.determine? as.ghe| 5-
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The following table details the minimum credit ratings for authorized investment counterparties:
Maturity -~:
6 mos. 1yr. 5 yrs. 10 yrs. 15 yrs. 30 yrs.
Government A/A2. -t efol AA-/Aa3 | AAS/Aaa
[P [ad0 - _.}". __.j}-_ e "
Govemntient | .l hAJA2 S et | AA-IAB3. | AAA/Aaa
Agencies™” and| "'""_'“:"".‘ Moaate gl ol e e T I e
Supranationals T - k :
Banks P Pasa2 |t AA-/Aa3s | AAA/Aaa s
S
Corporations A/A2 AA-Aal | AAA/Aaa
including non
bank financial
institutions
MBS /ABS No maturity limit, but repayment projections mandatory

The Bank also invests in mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities with a minimum rating of AAA/Aaa;
money market mutual funds with a minimum rating of AA-/Aa3; and enters into collateralized securities
repurchase agreements.

As a rule, the Bank executes an ISDA master agreement and netting agreement with its derivative
counterparties prior to undertaking any transactions. Derivative counterparties are required to be rated AA-
/Aa3 by at least two approved rating agencies or A- for counterparties with whom the Bank has entered into
a collateral exchange agreement. Approved transactions with derivative counterparties include swaps,
forwards, options and other over-the-counter derivatives. '

In addition to these minimum rating requirements, the Bank operates within a framework of exposure limits
based on the counterparty credit rating and size, subject to a maximum of 8% of the Bank’s total risk capital
for any single counterparty. Individual counterparty credit exposures are aggregated across all instruments
using the Bank for International Settlements (BIS) potential future exposure methodology and monitored
regularly against the Bank’s credit limits after considering the benefits of any collateral.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the potential for loss resulting from insufficient liquidity to meet cash flow needs in a
timely manner. The Bank’s principal liquidity risk management objective is to hold sufficient liquid
resources to enable it to meet all probable cash flow needs for a rolling 1-year horizon without additional
financing from the capital markets for an extended period. In order to minimize this risk, the Bank maintains
a prudential minimum level of liquidity (PML) based on the projected net cash requirement for a rolling
one-year period. The PML is updated quarterly and computed as the sum of four components: 1) 1-year debt
service payments; 2) l-year projected net loan disbursements (loans disbursed less repayments) if greater
than zero; 3) loan equivalent value of committed guarantees; and 4) undisbursed equity investments.

To strike an optimal balance between generating adequate investment returns and holding securities that can
be easily sold for cash if required, the Bank divides its investment portfolio into tranches with different
liquidity objectives and benchmarks. The Bank's core liquidity portfolio is invested in relatively liquid
securities that can be readily sold if required. In addition to the core portfolio, the Bank maintains a second




African Development Bank

22

tranche of liquidity that is always invested in the most highly liquid securities to cover its expected
operational cash flow needs. Probable redemptions of swaps and borrowings with embedded opticns are . ‘
included ir. the computation of the size of the operational tranche of liquidity. A third tranche of liquidity, ., . -
ihich is funded by the Bank's equity resources, is held in a portfolio of fixed income securities desjgnated -

as “held-to-matzity” investments (HTM). Only HTM investments with a remaining maturity of one year or

less are considered as liquid investmentst+in the determination of the Bapk’s minimnn: liquidity -«
wmetyaih. . requirements.. - - - g B o e T -t i -
o - . R IUNTIE D il BoF A R

CURRENCY RISK

Currency risk is the potential loss due to adverse movements in market foreign exchange rates. To promote
i stable growth in its risk bearing capacity, the Bank’s principal currency risk management objective is to
protect its risk capital from translation risk due to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates by
matching the currency composition of its net assets to the currency composition of the SDR (UA). The
agreement establishing the Bank explicitly prohibits it from taking direct currency exchange exposures by
requiring liabilities in any one currency to be matched with assets in the same currency. This is achieved
primarily by holding or lending the proceeds of its borrowings (after swap activities) in the same currencies
in which they were borrowed (after swap activities). To avoid creating new currency mismatches, the Bank
requires its borrowers to service their loans in the currencies disbursed.

|

i Because a large part of its balance sheet is funded by equity resources, which are denominated in Units of
| Account (equivalent to the SDR), the Bank has a net asset position that is potentially exposed to translation
risk when currency exchange rates fluctuate. The Bank’s policy is to minimize the potential fluctuation of
the value of its net worth measured in Units of Account by matching, to the extent possible, the currency
composition of its net assets with the currency basket of the SDR (the Unit of Account).

The Bank also hedges its exposure to adverse movements on currency exchange rates on its administrative
expenses. The distribution of the currencies of the Bank’s recurring administrative expenditures shows a
high concentration of expenses in Euros, USD and Tunisian Dinar.

Currency Risk Sensitivity Analysis

As described in the previous section, the Bank manages its currency risk exposure by matching, to the
extent possible, the currency composition of its net assets with the currency basket of the SDR. The SDR is
composed of a basket of four currencies, namely the US dollar, Euro, Japanese yen and Pound sterling. The
weight of each currency in the basket is reviewed by the International Monetary Fund every five years and
the last revision became effective on January 1, 2006. The SDR rate represents the sum of the interest rate
of each currency that is determined based on the weight and the representative exchange rate and interest
rate of each currency.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Bank’s interest rate risk sensitivity is comprised of two elements: 1) the sensitivity of the interest ,
margin between the rate the Bank earns on its assets and the cost of the borrowings funding such assets; and
2) the sensitivity of the income on assets funded by equity resources to changes in interest rates. The Bank’s
principal interest rate risk management objective is to generate a stable overall net interest margin that is not
overly sensitive to sharp changes in market interest rates, but yet adequately responsive to general market
trends.
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Interest Rate Risk on Assets Funded By Debt

Over half of the Bank's interest-rate-sensitive assets are funded by debt. The Bank seeks to generate a stable
net interest marg* on assets fundéd by debt. by matching the interest rate characteristics of each class of
~.assets withithose of the corresponding liahilities. pasels v
. CL o _
.« pa .. In 1990, the Bank began offering "variable rate loans". The interest rate on these loans resets semi-annyally

of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings to provide borrowers with broadly stable interest rates tiat
gradually track changes in market interest rates. The cost of funds pass-thr{olugh formulation inccrporated in

€t the lending rates charged on the Bank’s pool-based loans has traditionally helped:to miniinize the interest
rate sensitivity of the net interest margin on this part of its loan portfolio. In view of declining demand for
this product in favor of market-based loans, the Bank is carefully managing the gradual winding down of the
designated funding pools.

Since 1997, the Bank offers fixed and floating rate loans whose interest rate is directly linked to market
interest rates {market-based loans). For the market-based loan products, the Bank’s net interest margin is
preserved by using swaps to align the interest rate sensitivity of the loans with that of the Bank’s underlying
funding reference (six-month Libor floating rate). The Bank may also provide borrowers with risk
management products such as swaps to modify the currency and interest rate terms of its market-based loan
products. Although it retains the credit risks of the borrower, the Bank eliminates the associated market risk
on these risk management products by simultaneously laying off market risks with an approved derivative
counterparty.

For the portfolio of liquid assets funded by borrowings, the Bank protects its net interest margin by
managing its investments within limits around benchmarks that replicate the interest rate characteristics of
the underlying funding for each portfolio tranche. The portfolio of liquid assets funded by borrowings is
currently divided into two tranches to reflect the different business purposes and underlying funding. The
core part of the investment portfolio is held to comply with the Bank's liquidity policy and uses a six-month
Libor floating rate benchmark. The operational liquidity portfolio is managed to meet projected operational
cash flow needs and uses a one-month Libor floating rate benchmark.

The Bank diversifies the sources of its funding by issuing debt in a variety of markets and instruments.
Unless fixed rate funding is required for one of its pool-based loan products, the Bank protects its net
interest margin by simultaneously swapping all new borrowings into floating rate in one of the Bank’s
active currencies on a standard six-month Libor rate reference. Where the Bank issues structured debt, the
Bank simultaneously enters into a swap with matching terms to synthetically create the desired six-month

i Libor-based floating rate funding. For risk management purposes, callable funding is considered as one
alternative to issuing short-term debt such as Euro Commercial Paper. The Bank manages refinancing risk
by limiting the amount of debt that will mature or is potentially callable within one year to 253% of the
outstanding debt portfolio.

based on the average cost of a dedicated pooi of the Bank’s borrowings. These pools are funded with amix-

BT
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Interest Rate Risk on Assets Funded by Equity

The second principal source of interest rate risk is the interest ratc.sensitivity of the income earned from
funding a significant portion of the Bank’s assets with equity resources. Changes in market interest rates in
the currencies of the Bank's equity resources (the SDR) affect the. pet interest margin earned on assets
funded by equity. In general, lower nominal market interest rates resuit in lower lending and invegtment
rates, which in the long-term, reduce the nommal eammgs on the, Bank 5 equnty resourcgs,: - N

. .
....._...-.q.;; — 'F'f\r\lg_'ir{. Fandert “}n . e . .

- The Bank manages -the interest fate profile of the assets funded by equnty resources with the objectlve of _
i~ - reBucing th sensitivity ofithe net irterest margin to fluctuations in market interest rates. This is achigyed by . = |
. continuoudlivadjusting the re-pricing profile of the assets funded by the Bank's equity resources (fixed rate...¢[{qq,
! loans and investments) to match a re-pricing profile benchmark. The Bank’s re-pricing profile benchmark is \
| a 10-year ladder whereby a uniform 10% of the Bank’s assets funded by equity re-price in each year. Using
this benchmark, the Bank’s net interest margin on assets funded by equity tends to track a ten-year moving
average of 10-year maturity SDR interest rates.

Operational Risk

The Bank defines operational risks to include all aspects of risk-related exposure other than those falling
within the scope of credit, market and liquidity risks including specifically the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events and reputational risk.

Like all financial institutions, the Bank is also exposed to controls and operational risks arising from its
systems, functions and interdependencies among its departments, which could impact broadly its activities
with a possible consequence of operational losses. There are also many interdependencies among risk
factors that may result in an operational risk loss.

In the past, the Bank Group has relied almost exclusively upon internal controls within departments,

although not necessarily identified as managing operational risk, for its internal controls and operational risk

management. The evolving best practice is for specific structures and methods to be dedicated for

managing and coordinating operational risks. Following approval by the Board of Directors in 2004, the

Bank established an Internal Control Unit (ICU) to develop assessments and measure areas of operational
| risk in the Bank in line with the evolving best practices. The Bank also adopted and commenced in 2005,
| the implementation of the COSO control framework to regularly evaluate the effectiveness of its internal
controls in all significant business operations.

The implementation of Operational Risk Management is being done in phases: the first phase focused on the
documentation and testing of controls around financial reporting. Management attestation on the adequacy
of internal controls was published in the annual reports for the first time in 2006. Phase two of the
implementation commenced in 2007 and is extending the COSO framework to other areas of operational
risk management.

There are other initiatives or activities in the other areas of the Bank Group that are complementing the
work on operational risk management and controls including:

sFraud and Investigation Unit

«Whistleblower Protection Policy

sDocument Retention Policy

*Business Continuity Planning and Preparedness

|
sReview of Code of Conduct and Staff Rules
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Effects of Recent Developments in the Financial Markets

As a result of its prudent risk management policies and practices, the impact on the Bank «f the recent
turbulence in the world financial markets related in large part to losses-on sub-prire mertgage loans and
- reiated derivatives have been insignificant. With regard o the funding activities, there has been no agverse

»gffect on the Bank’s ability-1&°borrow at very attractive rates, cansistent with the Bank’s scii:' ©inancial

position as evidznced by the continued uniforn top rating by all the majomrating. agencies. Consequently,
the Bank continues'to be well placed to'play ifsintermediation role in support of the"development financig
needs of its member countries. With regard to investing activities, the Bank’s investment guidelines and

practices have helped to-ensuréa limited exposure to financial instruments vacked by sub-prime mortgages

and other risky asset classes. At March 31:2008, the Bank held an asset-backed commercial paper issued by

a SIV-lite with exposure to sub-prime mortgages. This investment amounted to USD 50 million or UA

31.64 million, representing 0.26% of the Bank’s total assets or 0.67% of total equity. The probable loss to

the Bank on such asset-backed commercial paper has been provided for in these financial statements.
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The tabie below s2¢= o "he Bank’s classification of each class of financial assets and liabilities, and their

=spective fairvalues:

" Analyis of financia asets and lbiiis r?f}i‘uiemem basis . ot "
P : . B
g ""'(E‘}'\&wd% e Finaneiat srsets and li bl e h ‘.‘h ) R B SRR (8
el N e ';,:;: ,,':,,:M O e i . Akt L o= ""‘”u‘:ﬁi‘;:"ﬂ"d Toarying OV
March 31, 7008 Designated at Tuir maturity . e receivables amortised cost amount
. Held-for-trading valne s . — !
AZ% Py ~ B
Cash - Th3 - 51384 31384 51,384
- LI B B X

Demand obligations - B - 3800 3800 330
Treasury investments 3,245068 2,669,146 - - - 5914214 5959939
Derivative assets 443,604 - - . 443,604 43604
Non-negotiable instruments on account of capital . B . 14,796 14,79 14,796
Accounts receivable - - - 538,718 538,718 538,718
Loans 5,321,352 5,321,331 5,568,492
Equity participations - 04325 - 04,315 204325
Other debt seeurities - 718,353 - 78,353 73,333

Total financtal assets 688,672 - 1,663,146 W267H 560,050 69,981 12,570,517 11863412
Accounts payable - . - 85747 657,327 657,47
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and
payabie for cash coltateral received - - - - -
Derivative liabilities 728,060 - - - - 728,060 728,060
Barmowings 5,571,031 - - - 909,448 6,430,479 6,109,446
Tatal financial liabilities 718,060 5,571,031 - 1,566,795 7.865,846 5,094,853

Fsancal m;:lo:il:,]-l:::m fhrovgh Held-to-  Available-for-  Loars and lel;::i:j::: tod Totad earrying Fair Value
March 31, 2007 Designated atfair maturity sale receivables amortised cost amount

Held-for-trading value
Cash - - - 48,003 43,00 48,003
Demand obligations . - . L 71 1221
Treasury investments 3,712,998 - 2,604,248 - 6,317,146 6,307,963
Dettvative assets 288326 - - 288,326 288,326
Non-negotiable instruments on account of capital - - 0,274 20274 202
Accounts receivable 454,065 454065 454 065
.oans - 4,989,084 4989034 5,234,252
Equity participations - 126,812 - 126,812 126,812
Other debt securities - - - . .

Tota! financial assets 4,001,324 1,604,248 126,812 5443149 75458 12250031 1248692
Accounts payable - . . 583,219 583,279 383179
Securities sold wnder agreements to repurchase and
payahle for cash collateral received MM - 3,30 u3m
Derivative kiabilities 474086 - - 474,085 474,086
Bormowings - 4,933,308 - - 998,205 5831510 5931510
Total financial liabilities 1,217,413 4,933,305 - . - 1,581,434 1732200 71,732,101
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NOTE F - TREASURY INVESTMENTS

As part of its overall portfolic imanagemgat .girategy, the Bank invests in government and agency
obligations, time deposits, asset-backed securities, secured lending transactions, resale agreements and
related _derivative instruments including futures, fgpva_rd contracts, cross-currency swaps, interest rate
swaps, options and short sales.

IR 1Y P M TR
bk ansg)

e

For gbV&thifent and agency obligations with final maturity lohger than 1 year;-the.Bank may only Anvest in w v .

obligations witk counterparties having a minimum credit rating of AA- or unconditionally guaranteed by

governmeliis of semiber countries-or other official entities. For asset-backed securities, the Bank may onl; .,

invest in securities with a AAA credit rating. Investments in money market instruments are restricted to
instruments having maturities of not more than 1 year and a minimum credit rating of A. Over-the-counter
(OTC) options on government securities and interest rate products are purchased only if the life of the
option contract does not exceed 1 year, and such transactions are only executed with counterparties with
credit ratings of AA- or above. Cross-currency and interest rate swaps including asset swap transactions are
only permitted with approved counterparties or guaranteed by entities with minimum credit ratings of AA-
/Aa3 at the time of the transaction.

The Bank uses external managers in the management of certain of its liquid assets, in accordance with the
Bank’s Asset and Liability Management Guidelines. At March 31, 2008, investments under external
management were UA 148.26 million (2007: UA 121.89 million). These amounts were included in the held-
for-trading portfolio below.

At March 31, 2008, the Bank had no securities sold under repurchase agreements (Repos). At March 31,
2007, Repos with a nominal value of UA 743.33 million and a market value including accrued interest of
UA 744.62 million were outstanding on the balance sheet date. Securities pledged as collateral outstanding
at March 31, 2007 had a carrying value of UA 725.51 million.

The composition of treasury investments as at March 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Held-for-trading 3,245,068 3,712,998
Held-to-maturity 2,669,146 2,604,248

Total 5,914,214 6,317,246
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Held-for-trading investments
A summary of the Bank’s held-for-trading investments at March 31, 2008 and 2097 follows:
(UA millions) ‘ s
US Dollar. Exro . GBP Other Cuyrencies All Currencies
008 2007 208 2007 Z008 2007 28 2007 2008 2007
e g | I N B 1 R el T - N
Time deposits _ . 476.81 67480  TI050 6152 4423 24045 14008 28272 143162 125949
Asset-backed securifies .- 1M6 ST 1T 36905 - 10086 - . 141 98752 . ¢ i
Government and agency obligationgs. . 117.29 . 1947 256 - - 468 13676 124
Corporate bonds and commercial paper 96231 88804 44692 33779 - 605 3292 141528 145875

Tofal held-for-trading investments ~ 1,691.10 2,080.25 1363.61 97112 4213 ML 14613 32037 324507 3,713.00

Repos - owmn - (81.79) - - (1010 - ()

The nominal balance of the Bank’s held-for-trading investments as at March 31, 2008 was UA 3,249.97
million (2007: UA 3,709.73 million). The average yield of held-for-trading investments for the three months
ended March 31, 2008 was 4.45% (2007: 4.60%).

The contractual maturity structure of held-for-trading investments as at March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as
follows:

(UA millions) 2008 2007
One year or less 2,052.07 1,74751
More than one year but less than two years 479.49 320.49
More than two years but less than three years 317.56 722.36
More than three years but less than four years 54.02 231.58
More than four years but less than five years 4.39 54.03
More than five years : 337.54 637.03
Total 3,245.07  3,713.00

The maturity structure of repos as at March 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

(UA millions) 2008 2007

One year or less - (743.33)
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Held-to-maturity investments .
- A summary of the Bank’s held-to-maturity investments at March 31, 2008 and 2007 follows:
(UA miltions) | _
P LT 1% :
US Dollars Euro GBP . :Qther Currencies All Correncies
2008 2007 2008 Wi 2008 2007 -2008 - -2007 2008 2007
==y Taee sneA NN theE QL R .
Time deposits . - . - . .
Asset-backed securities 41 18926 329L 10.39 - - - 207.02 199.63
Government and agency obligations U933 48526 1914817904 20590 24144 11348 12690 86020 1,032.64
Corporate bonds and others 607.16 49624 572719 51217 26295 27888 159.03 8467 160193 137196

Total held-to-mafurity investments 1,130.60  1L170.76 79719  701.60 468.85 52032 272.51 21157 2,669.15  2,604.25

The nominal balance of the Bank’s held-to-maturity investments as at March 31, 2008, was UA 2,686.99
million (2007: UA 2,606.56 million). The average yield of held-to-maturity investments for the three
months ended March 31, 2008 was 4.94% (2007: 4.21%).

The contractual maturity structure of held-to-maturity investments as at March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as
follows:.

(UA millions) 2008 2007
One year or less 33491 264.05
More than one year but less than two years 325.38 299.43
More than two years but less than three years 458.75 313.02
More than three years but less than four years 361.54 453.27
More than four years but less than five years 399.60 287.15
More than five years 788.97 987.33
Total 2669.15  2,604.25

The fair value of held-to-maturity investments at March 31, 2008 was UA 2,714.87 million (2007: UA
2,594.97 million).
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NOTE G - DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The fair values of derivative financial assets and financial liabilities at March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as
| follows:

~(UAThGusands; o 2008 2007 c g
& LR - Assets Liahi!ities Assets Lifabilities .},,
Borrowin-;éuf;é.i;;-:%.{ T ‘ - R o
Cress-currency swaps 299,660 701,725 210,398 399,335 S
Interest rate swaps 104,621 10,564 13952,202. o 44,089
Loan swaps 16,448 11,937 24,178 21,893
Embedded derivatives 504 315 333 1,071
421,233 724,541 287,111 466,388
Investments-related:
Asset swaps - 3,519 789 2,448
Macro-hedge swaps 22,371 - 426 5,250
22,371 3,519 1,215 7,698
Total 443,604 728,060 288,326 474,086

The notional amounts of derivative financial assets and financial liabilities at March 31, 2008 and 2007
were as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Borrowings-related: '

Cross-currency swaps 4,605,361 4,130,514
Interest rate swaps 3,405,615 3,761,394
Loan swaps 999,755 911,729
Embedded derivatives 20,047 18,573

9,030,778 8,822,210

Investments-related:

Asset swaps 366,068 254,657

Macro-hedge swaps 113,211 302,611

479,279 557,268

Total 9,510,057 9,379,478
Loan swaps

The Bank has entered into interest rate swaps to effectively convert fixed rate income on loans in certain
currencies into variable rate income.




African Development Bank

31
NOTE H - NON-NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF CAPITAL

Prior to May 1981, all payments in respect of paid-up capitai- had been made in convertible currencies.
However, for the capital increases authorized in May 1979 (but effective December 1982) and May 1981,
regionai members had the foll'owing'two options for making their payments:

g
1) Five.(5) equal annual 1nsta|1ments of v Wthh at least 50 percent is payable in convertible currency and UL
the remainder in local currency; or = : N T

2 st . s~ . ’
w0 2)  Five (5) equal anew al inctallments, of 'which 20 percent is payable in convertible currency and 80

percent in non- negonable non- interest bearmg notes. Such notes are redeemable by the Bank solely.in;, |,
convertible currency in installments commencing on the fifth anniversary of the first subscription payment
date.

Non-regional members were required to make their payments solely in convertible currencies.

The paid-up portion of subscriptions, authorized in accordance with Board of Governors’ Resolution
B/BG/87/11 relating to the Fourth General Capital Increase (GCI-1V), is to be paid as follows:

1) Regional members — 50 percent in five (5) equal annual installments in cash in freely convertible
currency or freely convertible currencies selected by the member state, and 50 percent by the deposit of five
non-negotiable, non-interest bearing notes of equal value denominated in Units of Account. Such notes are
redeemable by the Bank solely in convertible currency in five (5) equal annual instaliments commencing on
the fifth anniversary of the first subscription payment date.

2) Non-regional members — five (5) equal annual installments in their national currencies, where such
currencies are freely convertible or in notes denominated in freely convertible currencies encashable on
demand.

Under the Fifth General Capital Increase (GCI-V), there is no distinction in payment arrangements between
regional and non-regional members. Each member is required to pay for the paid-up portion of its
subscribed shares in eight (8) equal and consecutive annual installments. The first installments shall be paid
in cash and in a freely convertible currency. The second to the eighth installments shall be paid in cash or
notes encashable on demand in a freely convertible currency. '

At March 31, 2008 and 2007, the non-negotiable notes balances were as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Balance at January 1 15,385 20,383
Net movement for the period (589) (109)

Balance at March 31 14,796 20,274
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NOTE I- LOANS

The Bank’s loan portfolio comprises loans granted to, or guaranteed by borrowing member countries as well
as certain other non-sovereign guaranteed loans. Amounts disbursed on loans are repay abic in the currency
or currencies disbursed by the Bank or in other freely convemble cuirency or currencies appravad by the
Bank. The amount repayable in each of these currencies shall be equal to the amount dickizsed in the

.original currency. Loans are granted for a L:max1mum period of twenty. vears, including a grace period, which-__ .

is typically the period of project lmplementatlon Loans are for the” purpose of ﬁnancmg development
projects and programs, and are not intended for sale. Furthermore, management does not believe there is a
comparable secondary. market for the type of lcans made by the Bank.

The types of loans currently held b the' Bank and the rates charged are described telow:

Multi-Currency Fixed Rate Loans: For all loans negotiated prior to July 1, 1990, the Bank charges
interest at fixed rates.

Multi-Currency Variable Rate Loans: Between July 1, 1990 and September 30, 1997, the Bank
offered variable rate loans to its borrowers. The variable interest rate is reset twice a year and is
based on the Bank’s own cost of qualified borrowing plus 50 basis points, resulting in a pass-through
of average borrowing costs to borrowers.

Conversion of Multi-Currency Pool-Based Variable Rate Loans: Borrowers were offered the
choice to convert the disbursed and undisbursed amounts of their multi-currency pool-based variable
rate to single currency variable terms or retain the terms of their existing multi-currency pool-based
variable rate loans. The conversion dates were October 1, 1997 and March 1, 1998. The other terms
and conditions of converted loans remained the same as in the original loan agreements. Since
October 1, 1997, the Bank has provided several alternative interest rate mechanisms. In all cases, the
applicable rate of interest is the sum of two components, namely, the chosen base rate plus a lending
margin.

Single Currency Variable Rate Loans: ‘Since October 1, 1997, the Bank has offered single
currency variable rate loans. The variable base rate is the average cost of funding a designated pool
of borrowings in each currency and is adjusted semi-annually on January 1 and July 1.

Single Currency Floating Rate Loans: Since October 1, 1997, the Bank has offered LIBOR-based
single currency floating rate loans. The floating base rate is determined for each currency and reset
frequency is based on the Bank’s selected reference interest rate in each market. The Bank’s
standard floating base rate is the six (6)- month reference rate (USD LIBOR, JPY LIBOR,
EURIBOR and JIBAR) which is reset semi-annually on February 1 and August 1 and is applicable
for the six-month period following the reset date.

Single Currency Fixed Rate Loans: Fixed rate loans were reintroduced with effect from October
1997 in the form of single currency fixed rate loans. The fixed rate is computed as the inter-bank
swap market rate corresponding to the principal amortization schedule.

Lending Margin: The lending margin is a rate premium expressed as a nominal interest rate added to the
Borrower’s chosen base rate to determine the total lending rate. The lending margin determined by the Bank
is independent of the base rate chosen, and remains unchanged throughout the life of the loan. The lending
margin for sovereign guaranteed loans is fixed at 40 to 50 basis points. For non- sovereign guaranteed loans,
the lending margin is based on the Bank’s assessment of the risks inherent in each project.
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At March 31, 2608 and 2007, outstanding loans were as follows:
_ (VA thousands) - - ' 2008 2007
" Disbursed and aiitstarding loans 5,524,176 5,208,244
Less: accumulated prqr,wlqgfor impairment o (202,244) (219,160) !
_E?jgnqe at I.\‘lqrch K] B L 5,321,332 . 4,989,084 TV
Jthe e s . SRS ¢ et Windlementalion, - T
Maturity and currency composition of outstanding loans
SRR et

The contractual maturity structure of loans as at March 3 1, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:
(UA millions)

2008 2007
Periods Fixed Rate  Floating Rate Variable Rate Total Total
One year or less 406.44 16131 373.16 94091 938.17
More than one year but less than two years 17582 161.21 141.65 478.68 511,55
More than two years but less than three vears 180.76 154.28 137.04 472.08 4197
More than three years but less than four years 190.22 143.86 100.30 43438 454.01
More than four years but less than five years 19451 148.78 56.06 399.35 401.96
More than five years 1,839.76 906,92 52.10 2,798.78 2,428.58
Total 2,937.51 1,676.36 86031 535218 5,208.24

Borrowers may repay loans before their contractual maturity, subject to the terms specified in the loan
agreements.
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The currency composition and types of loans as at. March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
{Amounts in UA millions) 2008 2007
e B Amount % Amount %
Fixed Rate: Multi-Currency guro , 154.71 - 9198
o T Uz Japanese-Yen- 400.16 5L 2215, s
Pound Sterling 295 ' 0.63 '
. Swiss Franc 167.22 3345
© Y g - US Dollar 294.94 - 17863
Others 0.83 1.25 .
1,020.81 183.48 435.09 8.35
Single Currency  Euro 1,790.75 1,442.07
Japanese Yen ' 13.12 310.63
Pound Sterling - 2.54
South African Rand 57.38 57.55
Swiss Franc - 127.73
US Dollar 105.46 297.38
Others - 0.32
1,966.71 35.60 2,23822 4297
Floating Rate: Single Currency  Euro 531.42 470.26
Japanese Yen 14.05 10.95
South African Rand 108.97 142.47
US Dollar 1,021.92 754.78
1,676.36 30.35 137846 2647
Variable Rate: Multi-Currency Euro 167.07 179.60
Japanese Yen 32.81 38.49
Swiss Franc 0.91 1.03
US Dollar 146.21 174.88
Others 0.14 0.21
347.14 6.28 394.21 7.57
Single Currency Euro 217.18 333.52
Japanese Yen 1172.51 125.51
Swiss Franc 17.31 16.79
US Dollar 161.13 286.41
Others 0.03 0.03
513.16 9.29 762.26 14.64
Total 5,524,18 100.00 5,208.24  100.00

The weighted-average yield on outstanding loans for the period ended March 31, 2008 was 5.92% (2007:

6.11%).
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A comparative summary of the currency composition of loans at March 31, 2008 and 2007 follows:
{Amounts in UA millions) 2008 2007

_ Amount. % Amount %
Euro . = 2,861.13 51.79 2,517.41 48.34
Japanese Yen 57765 . 1646 u14.72 11.80
Swiss Franc . .- 7.0y 18544 - =~ 336'"v 179.00
Pound Sterling 2.95 0.05 3.17 0.06
US Dollar - N 1729.66 31.31 1,692.10 32.49
South African Rand - 166.35 3.01 200.02 3.84
Others 1.00 0.02 1.82 0.03
Total 5,524.18 100.00 5,208.24 100.00

Accrued income and charges receivables on loans

The accrued income and charges receivables on loans as at March 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Accrued income and charges receivable on loans 421,369 452,305
Less: accumulated provision for impairment (178,011)  (230,638)
Balance at March 31 243,358 221,667

Provision for impairment on loan principal and charges receivable

33

I IEEET

At March 31, 2008, loans with an aggregate principal balance of UA 609.26 million (2007: UA 671.05
million), of which UA 433.13 million (2007: UA 428.97 million) was overdue, were considered to be
impaired. The gross amounts of loans and charges receivables that were impaired and the cumulative
impairment on them at March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Qutstanding balance on impaired loans 609,263 671,053
Less: accumulated provision for impairment (202,844) (219,160)
Net balance on impaired loans 406,419 451,893
Charges receivable and accrued income on impaired loans 270,869 363,608
Less: accumulated provision for impairment (178,011) (230,638)
Net charges receivable and accrued income on impaired loans 92,858 132,970

The movements in the accumulated provision for impairment on outstanding loan principal for the quarter

ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Balance at January | 196,016 214,180
Provision for impairment on loan principal for the period 4,888 4,748
Translation effects 1,940 232
Balance at March 31 202,844 219,160
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The movements in the accumulated provision for impairment on loan interest and charges receivable foi the
quarter ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

{UA thousands) 2008 2007

Balance: i “nuary 1 - 168,701 222,588 -
Provisi&;‘l for impairment on loan charges for the period ‘—:1- 7,315 . ‘ 7,869 ot

.. Translation effects . _ 1,995 - 181 ‘
Balance at March 31 BT O T ! 178,011 230,638

";
Guarantees e

" The Bank may enter into special irrevocable commitments to pay amounts to the borrowers or other parties

for goods and services to be financed under loan agreements. At March 31, 2008, irrevocable
reimbursement guarantees issued by the Bank to commercial banks on undisbursed loans amounted to UA
1.34 million.

NOTE J - EQUITY PARTICIPATIONS

Investment in Associate: ADF

The ADF was established in 1972 as an international institution to assist the Bank in contributing to the
economic and social development of African countries, to promote co-operation and increased international
trade particularly among the African countries, and to provide financing on highly concessional terms for
such purposes. The Fund’s original subscriptions were provided by the Bank and the original State
Participants to the ADF Agreement, and State Participants acceding to the Agreement since the original
signing date. Thereafter, further subscriptions were received from participants in the form of Special
General Increases and General Replenishments.

The ADF has a 12-member Board of Directors, made up of 6 members selected by the African Development
Bank and 6 members selected by State Participants. The Fund’s Board of Directors reports to the Board of
Governors made up of representatives of the State Participants and the ADB. The President of the Bank is
the ex-officio President of the Fund.

To carry out its functions, the Fund utilizes the offices, staff, organization, services and facilities of the
Bank, for which it pays a share of the administrative expenses. The share of administrative expenses paid by
the Fund to the Bank is calculated annually on the basis of a cost-sharing formula, approved by the Board of
Directors, which is driven in large part by the number of programs and projects executed during the year.
Based on the cost-sharing formula, the share of administrative expenses incurred by ADF for the period
ended March 31, 2008 amounted to UA 32.28 million (2007: UA 26.53 million), representing 73.06 percent
(2007: 71.39 percent) of the shareable administrative expenses incurred by the Bank. The accounts of the
ADF are kept separate and distinct from those of the Bank.

Although the ADB by agreement exercises fifty percent (50%) of the voting powers in the ADF, the
Agreement establishing the ADF also provides that in the event of termination of the ADF’s operations, the
assets of the Fund shall be distributed pro-rata to its participants in proportion to the amounts paid-in by
them on account of their subscriptions, after settlement of any outstanding claims against the participants.
At March 31, 2008, the Bank’s pro-rata or economic share in ADF was 0.86% (2007: 0.93%).

As a result of the implementation in 2006 of the Multilateral Debt Relief Initiative, the net asset value of
ADF, which is the basis for determining the value of the Banks investment in the Fund, declined resulting in
an impairment in the Bank’s investment. The net assets of ADF are made up of its net development
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resources less outstanding demiand obligations plus disbursed and outstanding loans excluding balances due
from countries that have reached their HIPC completion points and are therefore due for MDRI loan
cancellation at the balance sheer, date.

OtherEquity Participations YO

The Bank may take eguity positicz:s iu privately owned productive enterprises: and financial mtermed;args

public sector companigs that-are in the process of being pnvatlzed or regional and sub-regional mstltggons sIOp P
The Bank’s objective in such equity investments is to promote the economic development of its regional
member countiics and in particular the development of their private sectors. The Bank’s equity participatipn .. ...
is also intended to promote efficient use of resources, promoting African participation, playing a catalytic

role in attracting other investors and lenders and mobilizing the flow of domestic and external resources to
financially viable projects, which also have significant economic merit.

Although the Bank is allowed to take equity positions of up to twenty five percent (25%) the Bank currently
holds less than 20% of the total equity capital of each institution in which it participates. The Bank therefore
does not seek a controlling interest in the companies in which it invests, but closely monitors its equity
investments through Board representation. In accordance with the Board of Governors’ Resolution
B/BG/2001/09 of May 29, 2001, total equity investment by the Bank shall not at any time exceed ten
percent (10%) of the aggregate amount of the Bank’s paid-up capital and reserves and surplus included in its
ordinary capital resources.

Equity investments for which fair value cannot be reliably measured are reported at cost less provision for
losses for estimated permanent and lasting decline in value. The investments for which fair value cannot be
reliably measured typically relate to sub-regional and national development institutions. Investments in
these institutions are made with a long-term development objective, including capacity building. The shares
of such institutions are not listed and also not available for sale to the general public. Only member states or
institutions owned by member states are allowed to subscribe to the shares of these institutions. Provisions
for losses on impaired equity investments are included in the income statement.

NOTE K - OTHER DEBT SECURITIES

The Bank may invest in certain debt instruments issued by entities in its Regional Member Countries
(RMC) for the purpose of financing development projects and programs. Such investments are classified as
available-for-sale.

The fair value of “Other debt securities” at March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Investment in debt instruments issued in RMC 78,353 -

The nominal value of the securities outstanding as at March 31, 2008, was UA 75.07 million.
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NOTE L - BORROWINGS
It is the Bank’s policy to limit senior borrowing and guaranzees chargeable to the Bank’s ordinary capital

resources to 80 percent of the callable capital of its non-borrowing members and also to Jimit the total
borrow/ing represented by both senior and subordinated debt tc 80 percent of the total callable capital of a]l

.~ 7 its member-countries. T _— L ‘
: fet b L AN T H Lo .t slib
.. AsatMarch3l, 2008 and 2007 the senior and the ‘subordinated borro“ mgs were as follnws T e
" iz UA mllllons) - ' 2008 2007 |
Ty ———rtt -

Senior borrowing 5,808.84 5230.90

Surbodinated borrowing 671.64 691.61

Total 6,480.48 5922.51

As of the same date, the non-borrowing members’ callable capital, the ratio of senior debt te the non-
borrowing members’ callable capital and the ratio of total outstanding borrowings to the total callable
capital were as follows:

( Amount in UA millions) 2008 2007
Non-Borrowing Callable Capital 8,503.17 8,533.51
Borrowing's ratio (%)
Debt/ Callable capital 33.52 30.62
Senior debt/ Callable Capital of non borrowing member 68.31 ' 61.40

The Bank uses derivatives in its borrowing and liability management activities to take advantage of cost-
savings opportunities and to lower its funding costs.

i The Bank has entered into cross-currency swap agreements with major international banks through which
proceeds from borrowings are converted into a different currency and include a forward exchange contract
providing for the future exchange of the two currencies in order to recover the currency converted. The
Bank has also entered into interest rate swaps, which transform a floating rate payment obligation in a
particular currency into a fixed rate payment obligation or vice-versa.
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The contractual (except for callable borrowings) maturity structure of outstandmg borrowings as at March
31, 2008 was as follows:

i)  Borrowings carried at fair value

(UA millions) S
Periods .. «: A hane Ordinary- ' 'MCallable" Total
One year or less 1,107.88 233.62 1,341.50
More than one year but less than two years 1,054.11 22.90 1,077.01
More than two years but less than three years 1,096.73 421 1,100.94
More than three years but less than four years 13.66 1.82 15.48
More than four years but less than five years 438.07 - 438.07
More than five years 1,598.03 - 1,598.03
Total 5,308.48 262.55 5,571.03
ii) Borrowings carried at amortized cost
(UA millions)
Periods Ordinary Callable Total
One year or less 3243 80.80 113.23
More than one year but less than two years - -
More than two years but less than three years - - -
More than three years but less than four years - - -
More than four years but less than five years - - -
More than five years 800.20 - 800.20
Sub-total 832.63 80.80 913.43
Net unamortized premium and discount (3.98) - (3.98)

Total §28.65 80.80 909.45
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The contractual (ezcept for callable borrowings) maturity structure of outstanding borrowings as at March 31,
2007 was as foliows:

{) Borrowings carried at fair value

¢UA millions)

Periods - _ ' Ordinary Callable Total
" One Vear or less - Ca el 46891 - cenc 25126 72007 T

More than one year but less than two years . 114295 3191 - 1,174.86.

More than two years but less than three years "~~*#  1,450.81 465 145544

More than three years but less than four years 242°G2™ 0.52 242.54

More than four years but less than five years 13.60 - 13.60

More than five years 1,326.70 - 1,326.70

Total 4,644.99 288.32  4,933.31

ii) Borrowings carried at amortized cost

(UA millions)

Periods Ordinary Callable Total
One year or less 66.74 74.86 141.60
More than one year but less than two years 29.78 - 29.78

More than two years but less than three years - - -
More than three years but less than four years - - -
More than four years but less than five years - - -

More than five years 831.53 - 831.53
Sub-total 928.05 74.86 1,002.91
Net unamortized premium and discount (4.71) - (4.71)
Total 923.34 74.86 998.20

The fair value of borrowings carried at fair value through profit or loss at March 31, 2008 was
UA 5,571.03 million (2007: UA 4,933.31 million). For these borrowings, the amount the Bank will be
contractually required to pay at maturity at March 31, 2008 was UA 5,396.71 million (2007: UA 4,871.72
million). The surrender value of callable borrowings is equivalent to the notional amount plus accrued
finance charges.

As per Note O, there was a net loss of UA 19.31 million on fair-valued borrowings and related derivatives
for the period ended March 31, 2008 (2007: gain of UA 22.55 million). This included a loss of UA 5.73
million which was attributable to changes in the Bank’s credit risk during the period ended March 31, 2008.
Fair value changes attributable to changes in the Bank’s credit risk are determined by comparing the
discounted cash flows for the borrowings designated at fair value through profit or loss using the Bank’s
credit spread versus LIBOR both at the beginning and end of the relevant period.

For borrowings designated at fair value through profit or loss at March 31, 2008, the cumulative unrealized
fair value losses to date were UA 174.32 million (2007: losses of UA 61.59 million).
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NOTE M - EQUITY A
Equity is composed of capital and reserves, T hese are further detailed as follows:
Capital | ' ' it
Capital includes subscriptigns paid-in by member countries and cumulative exchange adjustments -on
subscrlptlons (CEAS). ~nn- ¥ =r—="= . Tee o SUSSCH.

Subscriptions paidin . 3
Subscriptions to the capital stock of the Bank are made up of the subscription to the initial capital, a
voluntary capital increase and five General Capital Increases (GCI). The Fifth General Capital Increase
(GCI-V) was approved by the Board of Governors of the Bank on May 29, 1998 and became effective on
September 30, 1999 upon ratification by member states and entry into force of the related amendments to
the Agreements establishing the Bank. The GCI-V increased the authorized capital of the Bank by 35
percent from 1.62 million shares to 2.187 million shares with a par value of UA 10,000 per share. The GCI-
V shares, a total of 567,000 shares, are divided into paid-up and callable shares in proportion of six percent
(6%) paid-up and ninety-four percent (94%) callable. The GCI-V shares were allocated to the regional and
non-regional members such that, when fully subscribed, the regional members shall hold 60 percent of the
total stock of the Bank and non-regional members shall hold the balance of 40 percent.

Prior to the GCI-V, subscribed capital was divided into paid-up capital and callable capital in the proportion
of 1 to 7. With the GCI-V, the authorized capital stock of the Bank consists of 10.81 percent paid-up shares
and 89.19 percent callable shares.

The Bank’s capital as at March 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Capital Authorized (in shares of UA 10 000 each) 21,870,000 21,870,000
Less: Unsubscribed (186,556) (146,034)
Subscribed Capital 21,683,444 21,723,966
Less: Callable Capital (19,332,480) (19,370,484)
Paid-up Capital 2,350,964 2,353,482
Shares to be issued upon payment of future installment (10,690) (39,440)
Add: Amounts paid in advance 110 291
2,340,384 2,314,333
Less: Amounts in arrears (2,235) (3,168)
Capital at March 31, 2,338,149 2,311,165

Included in the total unsubscribed shares of UA 186.56 million at March 31, 2008, was an amount of UA
38.83 million representing the balance of the shareholding of the former Socialist Federal Republic of
Yugoslavia (former Yugoslavia).
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Since the former Yugoslavia has ceased to exist as a state under international law, its shares (cornposed of
UA 41.93 million callable, and UA 5.99 million paid-up, shares) were held as treasury shares of the Bank in
accordance with Article 6 (6) of the Bank Agreement. In 2002, the Board «f Directors of the Bank approved
the proposal to invite each of the successor states of the formér Yugoslavia to apply for membership in the
Bank, though such membership would be subject to their fulfilling certain conditions including the
assumption pro-rata of the contingent liabilities of the former Yugoslavia tv the Bank, as of December, 3], :-
1992. In the event that.a successor state declings. orlotnerw1 ¢ does not become a member of the Bank the
pro-rata portion of the sharés’df former Yugoslavia, which could have been reatlocated to such successgr .
state, would be reallocated to other interested non-regional members of the Bank in accordance wlth the,
terms of the Share Transfer Rules. The proceeds of such reatlocation will however be transferable torﬁgc@f L
successor state. Furthermore, pending the response from the successor states, the Bank may, under its Share
Transfer Rules, reallocate the shares of former Yugoslavia to interested non-regional member states and
credit the proceeds on a pro-rata basis to the successor states. In 2003, one of the successor states declined
the invitation to apply for membership and instead offered to the Bank, as part of the state’s Official
Development Assistance its pro-rata interest in the proceeds of any reallocation of the shares of former
Yugoslavia. The Bank accepted the offer.
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i

% of . % of Total

- Total Total  MAmownt’ DL TCallable Number Votir 3

* " ' MEMBER STATES Shares  Shares Paid C{f- Capital f Votes Py
1 ALGERIA - ., . . - 83168 . 3837 94,089 37600, ., 83193 3786
_____ 2 ANCOLA ' 25,4057 T - 28837 D520 5 26,030 1176
3 BENIN "~ 4,245 SN C7 IR Y 1 e ATRIT T 4870 0.220
4 BOTSWANA _ 46633 . 2132 52,925 413,405 47258 2135
5 BURKINAFASO Kamday 7y 9307 0429 10,520 gy, 82155 9932 0.449
6 BURUNDI T8I L 023 6.465 45,236 5,798 0.262
7 CAMEROON 22,588 WHNCT 1 042 25439 200,371 22,982 1.039
B CAPE VERDE 1672 0.077 2,090 14,630 2297 0.104
9 CENTRAL AFRICAN REPUBLIC 973 0.045 1217 8,512 1,598 0.072
i0 CHAD 1641 0.076 2,052 14,360 2266 0.102
11 COMOROS 484 0.022 599 4,250 1,004 0.049
12 CONGO 9,875 0.456 11,590 87,170 16,500 0.4M
13 COTE DIVOIRE 81,008 3738 101,260 708,820 81,633 3.689
14 DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC OF CONGO 22,740 1.049 28,426 198,975 23,365 1056
15 DIIBOUTI 1213 0.056 1,517 10,618 1,838 0.083
16 EGYPT 111,829 5.160 126,920 991,370 112,454 5.081
17 EQUATORIAL GUINEA 3,481 0.161 3,930 0,517 3,307 0.172
18 ERITREA 2,003 0.092 2,506 17,522 1,628 0.119
19 ETHIOPIA 34,778 1.605 39,470 308310 35,403 1.600
20 GABON 27,229 1256 32,684 138,255 26,765 1209
2l GAMBIA 3,341 0.154 3,891 29,523 1,966 0.179
22 GHANA 49,622 2290 54,488 441,751 50,247 2270
23 GUINEA 8,868 0409 10,658 78,031 9,494 0.429
24 GUINEA BISSAU 600 0.028 750 5,250 1,225 0.055
25 KENYA 31,707 1.463 35,990 281,080 32332 1.461
26 LESOTHO 3,324 0.153 3,113 29470 3,949 0.178
27 LIBERIA 4230 0.195 5,287 1017 4855 0.215
23 LIBYA 79,862 3.685 90,643 707,978 80,487 1637
29 MADAGASCAR 14,162 0.653 16,070 125,550 14,787 0.668
30 MALAWI 6472 0.299 8,090 56,630 7,097 0.321
31 MALI 9,536 0.440 10,937 84,411 10,161 0.459
32 MAURITANIA 3,543 0.163 4,015 31,000 3338 0.173
33 MAURITIUS 14,094 0.650 16,000 124,940 14,719 0.665
34 MOROCCO 72,268 3335 82,020 640,660 72,893 3.294
35 MOZAMBIQUE 13,766 0.635 15636 122,038 14,391 0.650
36 NAMIBIA 7,397 0341 8,400 65,570 8,022 0.362
37 NIGER 5,526 0.255 6,908 48,353 6,151 0.278
38 NIGERIA 193,152 8.912 221,604 1,709,933 193,757 8,755
39 RWANDA 2,902 0.134 3333 25,683 3,527 0.159
40 SAO TOME & PRINCIPE 1,489 0.069 1,864 13,024 2,114 0.096
41 SENEGAL 21,878 1.009 25,317 19347 22415 L.013
42 SEYCHELLES 1,224 0.056 1,501 10,739 1,849 0.084
43 SIERRA LEONE 5,298 0.244 6,623 45,361 5923 0.268
4 SOMALIA 1,941 0.090 2427 16,986 2,566 0116
45 SOUTH AFRICA 98,891 4.563 79,767 909,160 99,516 4497
46 SUDAN 8,830 0.407 11,036 77,257 9,453 0427
47 SWAZILAND 7251 0335 8,230 64,280 1876 0356
48 TANZANIA 17,860 0.824 20,685 157,927 18,486 0835
49 TOGO 1452 0.158 4314 30,201 4077 0184
50 TUNISIA 30,492 1.407 34,610 270,310 3,17 1406
51 UGANDA 1o 0.508 13,331 96,787 11,637 0526
52 ZAMBIA 26,585 1227 31,059 234,792 2721 1.230
53 _ZIMBABWE 45,028 2,078 54,094 396,188 45,653 2063
Total Regionals 1,301,047 60.032 1,471,106 11,537,288 1,332,111 60.193

Slight differences may occur in totals due to rounding.
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(Amounts in UA thousands)
% of % of Total
. Total Total Amount Callable Number Voting
MEMBER STATES . Shares Shares Paid Capital of Votes Power
Total Regionals -~ i 1,301,047 60.032 1,471,106 11,537,248 1,332,111 60.193
SRR TR T, S VI ks
54 ARGENTINA 5,846 0.270 6,108 KT 6472 0292
55 AUSTRIA 9,707 0.448 9,720 87,350 .- 10,332 0.467
56 BELGIUM 13,288 0.613 V13,579 I19,3I4” 13,914 0.629
57 BRAZIL . 9,673 0.446 9,700 +87,036 10,299 0.465
58 CANADA 81,648 3.767 81,750 734,730 82213 ing
39 CHINA 24,300 L121 24330 213,670 24,925 1126
60 DENMARK 25,168 1.161 25,200 226,480 25,193 1.163
61 FINLAND 10,627 0.490 10,640 95,630 11,252 0.508
62 FRANCE 81,648 3.767 81,750 734,730 82,213 3718
63 GERMANY 89,631 4136 89,740 806,570 90,256 4078
64 INDIA 4,860 0.224 4870 43,730 5,485 0.248
65 ITALY 52,644 2429 52,10 473,730 53,269 2407
66 JAPAN 119,400 5.509 119,550 1,074,450 120,025 44
67 KOREA 9,707 0448 9,120 87,350 10,332 0.467
68 KUWAIT 9,707 0.448 9.7120 §7,350 10,332 0.467
69 NETHERLANDS 18,555 0.856 17,116 168,450 18,902 0.854
70 NORWAY 25,168 1.161 25,200 226,480 25,193 L.165
7t PORTUGAL 5,213 0.241 5,156 46,980 5,838 0.264
12 SAUDI ARABIA 4212 0.194 4,220 37,900 4837 0219
73 SPAIN 23,034 1.063 21,870 208,470 23,659 1.06%
74 SWEDEN 33,592 1.550 13,630 302,290 4217 1.546
75 SWITZERLAND 3882 1471 31,920 286,900 32,507 1469
76 UNITED KINGDOM 36,554 1.687 36,600 328,940 mn 1.680
77 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 140,154 6.467 142,245 1,255,298 140,779 6.361
Total Non-Regionals 866,218 39.968 867,043 7,795,191 830,943 39.807
Grand Total 2,167,265 100.000 2,338,149 19,332,479 2,213,054 100.000

Slight differences may occur in totals due to rounding.

Cumulative Exchange Adjustment on Subscriptions (CEAS)

Prior to the fourth General Capital Increase (GCI-IV), payments on the share capital subscribed by the non-
regional member countries were fixed in terms of their national currencies. Under GCI-IV, payments by
regional and non-regional members in U.S. dollars were fixed at an exchange rate of 1 UA = USS 1.20635.
As a result of these practices, losses or gains could arise from converting these currencies to UA when
received. Such conversion differences are reported in the Cumulative Exchange Adjustment on

Subscriptions account.

o s
P

mrmy

-



133

A

African Development Bank

45
At March 31, 2008 and 2007, the Cumulative Exchange Adjustment on Subscriptions was as follows:
(UA thousands) : 2008 2007
Balance at January 1 s . o 160,075 155,742
Net conversion losses on new subscriptions _ 314 793 )
Balance at March31 o . : 160,389 156,535 o
ST ‘ N o == .
Reserves ) .-
Reserves consist cf retained earnings aud fair value gains on available for sale equity investments. -, -
Retcz‘i;lzd Earnings

Retained earnings included the net income for the year, after taking into account transfers approved by the
Board of Governors, and net ¢xpenses recognized directly in equity. Retained earnings as at March 31, 2008
and 2007 were as follows:

(UA thousands)

Balance at January 1, 2007 2,305,344
Net income for the period 75,157
Balance at March 31, 2007 2,380,501
Balance at January I, 2008 2,498,288
Net income for the current period 6,554
Balance at March 31, 2008 2,504,842

Fair value gains on available-for-sale equity investments

At March 31, 2008 and 2007, the fair value gains on available-for-sale equity investments were as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Balance at January 1 33,510 136
Net gain for the period 2,152 -

Balance at March 31 35,662 136

il
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NOTE N - INCOME FROM LOANS AND INVESTMENTS AND RELATED DERIVATIVES

Income from loans

Income from loans for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 and 2027 was as follows:

fre - I

(UA thousands) . -:- ' 2008 2067
Inter:st incorhe on loans not impaired | . - 71,814 67,295 . s
Interest income on impaired loans & 8,971 11,536
Commitment chargese . | o 920 419
Statutory commission 198 357
Total 81,903 79,607

Income from investments and related derivatives

Income from investments for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Interest income ‘ 62,206 61,450
Realized and unrealized fair value losses (2,658) 1,262
Total 59,548 62,712

NOTE O - BORROWING EXPENSES

Interest and amortized issuance costs

Interest and amortized issuance costs on borrowings for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as
follows:

(UA thousands) ' 2008 2007
Charges to bond issuers 68,4006 65,047
Amortization of issuance costs (1,996) 1,141
Total 66,410 66,188

Net interest on borrowing-related derivatives

Net interest on borrowing-related derivatives for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Interest on derivatives payable 98,777 97,257
Interest on derivatives receivable (80,669) (84,686)

Total 18,108 12,571
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Unrealized (ioiff-s)fgain on fair-valued borrowings and related derivatives

_'Jnr"ahzeu (}ss)/gain on fair-valued borrowings and related derivatives for the guarter enaed .

March 31, 2008 ans 2007 was as follows:
(!i

e, \JAthousands)- L L2008 2007

Fair-valued borfowings : . ' (54,360) 13,057
Cross-currency swaps R 90 (1,427)
Interest rate swaps 34,956 10,916
Total (19,314) 22,546

Unrealized (loss)/ gain on derivatives on non-fair valued borrowings and others

Unrealized net (loss)/gain on derivative on non-fair valued borrowings and others for the quarter ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Interest rate swaps (11,554) 6,052
Cross-currency swaps (4,703) 2,653
Macro hedge swaps 4,395 (539)
Embedded derivatives 850 133
Total (11,012) 8,299

NOTE P — ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Total administrative expenses relate to expenses incurred on behalf of the ADF, the NTF and for the
operations of the Bank itself. The ADF and NTF reimburse the Bank for their share of the total
administrative expenses, based on an agreed-upon cost-sharing formula, which is driven by certain selected
indicators of operational activity for operational expenses and relative balance sheet sizes for non-
operational expenses. However, the expenses allocated to the NTF shall not exceed 20 percent of the NTF’s
gross income. Administrative expenses comprised the following:

(UA thousands) 2008 2007
Personnel expenses 32,627 28,155
Other general expenses 10,045 8,106
Total 42,672 36,261
Reimbursable by ADF (32,283) (26,526)
Reimbursable by NTF (526) (686)

Net 9,863 9,049
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Management personnel compensaticn
Compensation paid to the Bank’s managiment personnel and executive directors during the quarters
ended March 31, 2007, and 2006 was madz up as follows:

(UA thousands) S 2008 2007 COA e - e
Salaries - o 3,671 3,297 C
Termination arid other'benefiis - 1,124 790, s

*" Contribution to rétirement and medical plan 783 663 T ntite
Tutal ) 5,578 - 4750 P

‘The Bank may also provide personal loans and advances to its staff, including those in management. Such
loans and advances, guaranteed by the terminal benefits payable at the time of departure from the Bank, are
granted in accordance with the Bank’s rules and regulations. At March 31, 2007 outstanding balances on
loans and advances to management staff amounted to UA 3.25 million (2007: UA 2.01 million). No expense
was recognized during the year in respect of impairment on debts due from related parties.

NOTE Q - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Staff Retirement Plan

The Staff Retirement Plan (SRP), a defined benefit plan established under Board of Governors’ Resolution
05-89 of May 30, 1989, became effective on December 31, 1989, following the termination of the Staff
Provident Fund. Every person employed by the Bank on a full-time basis, as defined in the Bank’s
employment policies, is eligible to participate in the SRP, upon completion of 6 months service without
interruption of more than 30 days.

The SRP is administered as a separate fund by a committee of trustees appointed by the Bank on behalf of
its employees. In November 2004, the Board of Directors of the Bank approved certain revisions to the SRP,
including simplification of the calculation of the employee contribution rate, more explicit reference to the
Bank’s residual responsibility and rights as the SRP sponsor, changes in survivor child benefits and an
increase in the pension accumulation rate from 2 percent to 2.5 percent for each year of service. The past
service cost associated with these changes amounted to UA 1.64 million and has been recorded in 2004.
Also, new members from the local field offices of the Bank joined the Plan in 2007 and the associated past
service cost of UA 1.07 million were reported in the 2007 financial statements. Under the revised SRP,
employees contribute at a rate of 9 percent of regular salary. A tax factor included in the basis for the
determination of contribution in the previous SRP has been eliminated. The Bank typically contributes twice
the employee contribution, but may vary such contribution based on the results of annual actuarial
valuations.

All contributions to the SRP are irrevocable and are held by the Bank separately in a retirement fund to be
used in accordance with the provisions of the SRP. Neither the contributions nor any income thereon shall
be used for or diverted to purposes other than the exclusive benefit of active and retired participants or their
beneficiaries or estates, or to the satisfaction of the SRP’s liabilities. At March 31, 2008, virtually all of the
SRP’s investments were under external management and these were invested in indexed funds, with the
following objectives: a) Equity portfolio — to track as closely as possible, the returns of the Morgan Stanley
Capital International World Index as well as hedging the currency exposure of the SRP’s anticipated future
liabilities; b) Bond portfolio — to track as closely as possible, the returns of the Citigroup World Government
Bond Index as well as hedge the currency exposure of the SRP’s anticipated future liabilities.
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Medical Benefit Plan )

The Medical Benefit Plan (MBP) was created under the Board of DRis~ctors’ resolution B/BD/2002/17 and
F/BD/2002/18 of July 17, 2002 and became effective on January 1, 2003. Under the MBP, all plan members
including existing staff or retirees contribute a percentage of their salary «r pension while the Bank also
contributes twice the total staff contribution towards the financing of .2 {BP. Contribution rates by, staff
members and. retirees, which are based on maritaipstatug and number of eligible childregn, range between
0.70 percent to a maximum' of 3.10 percent of salary or pension. An MBP board, composed of selscted . -
officers of the Bank and representaiives of retirees and the staff association, oversees the management and "
activities of the MBP. The coniributions from the Bank, staff and retirees are deposited in a trust accoupgsln :
accordance with the directive establishing the Plan, all Plan members including staff and retirees are eligible .. i
as beneficiaries for making claims for medical services provided to them and their recognized dependants.
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NOTE R - SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

+JEXCHANGE RATES
The “ates used for translating currencies into Units of Account at March 31, 2008 and 2027 were ac follows;
- Y Le s | AN
s Lotanr o 112008 2007
ST NTRPP.~ M il b

1 UA=SDR= Algetian Dinar S b 106.240000 - - 106.960000
Angolan Kwanza et 119.704000 120.329000

Botswana-Pula l, T - 16.883500 9.415130

Brazilian Real ' " lhe 2.803540 3.101470

Canadian Dollar 1.690380 1.741090

Chinese Yuan 11.542700 11.680100

CFA Franc 682.215000 743.816000

Danish kroner 7.755300 8.448730

Egyptian Pound 8.649740 8.481490

Ethiopian Birr 14.539400 13.202200

Euro 1.040030 1.133540

Gambian Dalasi 35.239600 41.692000

Ghanaian Cedi * 1.570450 13,928.300000

Guinean Franc 8,283.200000 8,283.200000

Indian Rupee 65.730700 65.828900

Japanese Yen 164.614000 177.674000

Kenyan Shilling 112.564000 | 105.110000

Korean Won 1,630.850000 1,420.030000

Kuwaiti Dinar 0.436614 0.437545

Libyan Dinar 1.932370 1.932370

Mauritian Rupee 42.729000 48.898100

Moroccan Dirham 12.105400 12.687000

Nigerian Naira 188.207000 191.482000

Norwegian Krone 8.373320 9.206580

Pound Sterling 0.827007 0.771248

Sao Tomé Dobra 23,322.100000 19,668.400000

Saudi Arabian Riyal 6.166860 5.663190

South African Rand 13.320400 10.986600

Swedish Krona 9.784740 10.571300

Swiss Franc 1.634470 1.844240

Tunisian Dinar 1.917840 1.963360

Ugandan Shilling 2,727.920000 2,611.190000

United States Dollar 1.644500 1.510190

Zimbabwean Dollar 391.005000 372.130000

* The Ghanaian Cedi was redenominated during 2007.

No representation is made that any currency held by the Bank can be or could have been converted into any other

currency at the cross rates resulting from the rates indicated above.
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